
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

November 17, 2014 



Table of Contents

Agenda 3
Closure of Coral Lane, Walnut Island, Grandy

Cover Sheet 5
Resolution 7
Coral Lane Plat 10
Walnut Island Coral Lane Closure 11

Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-25 Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine:
Cover Sheet 14
Case Analysis 15
Plan 26
Application 27
Community Meeting Summary 42
Monitoring Wells 55
Enhanced Ditch 61
NCDENR Permits 63

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-27 Bissell Professional
Group:

Cover Sheet 88
Case Analysis 89

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-26 Old Bay Ridge:
Cover Sheet 98
Case Analysis 99
Preliminary Plat 109

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck
Cover Sheet 110
Case Analysis 111
Development Agreement 120
PUD Variance 176
Stormwater 179

Approval of Minutes for November 3, 2014
Cover Sheet 195
Minutes 196

Budget Amendments
Budget Amendments 206

2012 Communnity Development Block Grant Language Access Plan
Cover Sheet 212
CDBG Language Access Plan 213

Surplus Resolution-EMS
Cover Sheet 223
Resolution 224

Tax Department-2014 Order of Collections
Cover Sheet 225
Order of Collections-2014 226

1



Firemen's Relief Fund Officers; Carova Beach VFD, Corolla
VFD, Crawford VFD, Knotts Island VFD, Moyock VFD, Lower
Currituck VFD

Cover Sheet 227
Carova Beach 228
Corolla 229
Crawford 230
Knotts Island 231
Moyock 232
Lower Currituck 233

2



Document last changed: 11/13/2014 11:06 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, November 17, 2014 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

 
5:30 - 6:30 PM     Reception for Outgoing Commissioners  

 
7:00 pm Call to Order 
 

A) Invocation-Reverend Dawne Hollis, Mt.  Zion United Methodist Church 
B) Pledge of Allegiance-Reverend Dawne Hollis, Mt.  Zion United Methodist 

Church 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Presentation-School Capacity and Residential Development  
 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Closure of Coral Lane, Walnut Island, Grandy  
B) Renaming of the Whalehead Club and Currituck Heritage Park, 

Corolla  
C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-25 Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine: 

Request for a use permit to operate an extractive industry (13.2 acre sand 
mine) on property owned by Bittersweet Farms, LLC located in Powells 
Point at 8528 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 124, Parcel 137J, Poplar 
Branch Township. 

D) Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-27 Bissell Professional Group: 
Request to amend the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 6: Subdivision and Infrastructure 
Standards, to modify the street intersection standards of the UDO. 

3



Document last changed: 11/13/2014 11:06 AM 

 
E) Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-26 Old Bay Ridge: Request for a 

preliminary plat/use permit for a 5 lot subdivision located in Currituck on 
the east side of Tulls Creek Road, approximately 600 feet north of 
Brumsey Road, Tax Map 49, Parcel 82C, Crawford Township. 
 

F) Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement - Request for a development agreement 
between Currituck County and Survey Road, LLC for property located in 
Moyock on Survey Road west of the intersection with Caratoke Highway, 
Tax 15, Parcel 83, Moyock Township. 

G) Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck PUD 
Variance - Variance request from the Unified Development Ordinance 
under which the development plan is vested to allow modified setbacks. 
The property is located at 120 Survey Road, adjacent to Eagle Creek 
subdivision, Tax Map 15, Parcel 83, Moyock Township. 

H) Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck 
Amended Preliminary Plat/Use Permit - Request for an amended 
preliminary plat/use permit for 146 residential lots and 7.21 acres of 
commercial allocation located on Survey Road adjacent to Eagle Creek 
subdivision, Tax Map 15, Parcel 83, Moyock Township. 

New Business 
 

A) Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of Minutes for November 3, 2014 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. 2012 CDBG Language Access Plan 
4. Surplus Resolution-EMS 
5. Tax Department-2014 Order of Collections 
6. Firemen's Relief Fund Officers; Carova Beach VFD, Corolla VFD, 

Crawford VFD, Knotts Island VFD, Moyock VFD, Lower Currituck 
VFD 
 

B) Commissioner’s Report 
 

C) County Manager’s Report 

 

Adjourn 

4



 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item Title 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

 
Public Hearing on Resolution Closing a Cul-de-sac on Coral Lane, Walnut Island, Block 2, Section 7 Grandy, North 
Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
Pursuant to G.S. 153A-241 a county may permanently close a road or easement after public hearing and findings 
that closure of the road will not be contrary to the public interest and no individual owning property in the vicinity 
of the road would be deprived of a reasonable means of ingress or egress to their property. 
 
The county has received a request from James Brian Dailey requesting closure of a cul-de-sac connected to Coral 
Lane in Walnut Island subdivision.  Mr. Dailey states in his request that some time ago Walnut Island Property 
Owners Association asked his father, former lot owner, to accept ownership of the cul-de-sac area on Coral Lane 
and adjacent to his lots.  No deeds have been conveyed and Mr. Dailey requests closure of the cul-de-sac so that 
by statute that area becomes part of his lots that he desires to now place for sale. 
 
On October 6, 2014 the Board adopted Resolution of Intent to Close the Coral Lane Cul-de-sac and setting a public 
hearing for November 17, 2014.  As required a notice of the public hearing was published once a week for three 
weeks in a newspaper with general circulation within the county.  
 
The Board may adopt the proposed Resolution upon finding that closing the cul-de-sac will not be detrimental to 
the public interest or individual property rights and no individual owning property within Walnut Island would be 
deprived of reasonable means of ingress or egress to their property. 
 
It is staff’s opinion that closure of the cul-de-sac will not be detrimental to the public interest or individual 
property rights in that since recordation of a plat in 1992 the predecessor in title to Mr. James Brian Daily, and 
Mr. Daily, have treated the cul-de-sac as their property upon request by the Walnut Island Property Owners 
Association.  Further, no owner of property in Walnut Island will be deprived of reasonable means of ingress or 
egress to their property as closure will only affect Mr. Daily’s property and a neighboring lot all of which have 
access directly from Coral Lane. 
 
Included with this agenda cover sheet is a proposed Resolution closing the cul-de-sac, the Resolution of Intent to 
close the cul-de-sac, Mr. Daily’s request to close the cul-de-sac, and a recorded plat showing the cul-de-sac 
proposed for closing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
Ike McRee, County Attorney 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
Ike McRee, County Attorney 

6



NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE 
 COUNTY OF CURRITUCK, NORTH CAROLINA CLOSING A  
 CORAL LANE CUL-DE-SAC, WALNUT ISLAND SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 2, SECTION 7  
 IN POPLAR BRANCH TOWNSHIP 

  

 WHEREAS, a preliminary resolution declaring the intent of the Board of Commissioners 

to close a Coral Lane cul-de-sac in Walnut Island Subdivision, Block 2, Section 7 was adopted at 

a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for the County of Currituck on October 6, 2014 

and a public hearing on the question was called for 7:00 P.M. on November 17, 2014 at the 

Historic Currituck Courthouse, Currituck, North Carolina for the purpose of hearing objections to 

the closing of the cul-de-sac; and 

 WHEREAS, notice of such public hearing has been published once a week for three 

successive weeks in The Daily Advance, a newspaper published and having a general circulation 

in Currituck County, North Carolina and a notice of the closing and the public hearing has been 

prominently posted in at least two places along the cul-de-sac which is to be closed and 

abandoned; and  

 WHEREAS, the public hearing was conducted at 7:00 P.M. on the November 17, 2014 at 

the Historic Currituck Courthouse, Currituck, North Carolina and said public hearing was 

conducted for the purpose of hearing objections to the closing of the cul-de-sac on Coral Lane, 

Walnut Island Subdivision, Block 2, Section 7, at which time all parties and persons interested 

were given an opportunity to be heard; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners, after considering all matters has determined 

that the closing the cul-de-sac will not be detrimental to the public interest or to any individual 

property rights and further the Board of Commissioners is satisfied that closing the cul-de-sac is 

not contrary to the public interest and no individual owning property in the subdivision in which 

it is located would thereby be deprived of reasonable means of ingress and egress to their 

property. 
  

 

 
 

 1 

7



 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for the 

County of Currituck that a cul-de-sac on Coral Lane, Walnut Island Subdivision, Block 2, 

Section 7 is permanently closed and abandoned, and that the right, title and interest in the cul-de-

sac be vested in the owners of the parcels of land adjoining the cul-de-sac which is more 

particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at a point situated in the southeast corner of Lot 85 and southwest corner of  Lot 86 
of Walnut Island, Section 7 more particularly shown at Map Book 4, Page 46 of the Currituck 
County Registry; thence along the southern boundary of Lot 85 described herein North 77 
degrees 46 minutes 22 seconds East 33.00 feet to a point situated in the northern right-of-way of 
Coral Lane and southern boundary line of Lot 85 as shown at Map Book 4, Page 46 of the 
Currituck County Registry, the point and place of BEGINNING.  Thence from the point of 
BEGINNING along a curve to the left with a radius of 20.00 feet, a delta of 90 degrees 00 
minutes 00 seconds, a tangent of 20.00 feet and an arc length of 31.42 feet to a point; thence 
along a curve to the right having a radius of 40.00 feet, a delta of 180 degrees 00 minutes 00 
seconds, and an arc length of 125.66 feet to a point; thence along a curve to the left having a 
radius of 20.00 feet, a delta of 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds, a tangent of 20.00 feet and an 
arc length of 31.42 feet to a point situated in the northern right-of-way of Coral Lane and 
southern boundary of line of Lot 90 as shown at Map Book 4, Page 46 of the Currituck County 
Registry; thence South 77 degrees 46 minutes 22 seconds West 120.00 feet to a point, the point 
and place of beginning, as more particularly shown on that plat entitled in part “Subdivision of 
Walnut Island, Section Seven, Currituck County, Grandy, North Carolina” prepared by John E. 
Sirine and Associates dated April 27, 1972 and of record at Map Book 4, Page 46 of the 
Currituck County Registry.    

  
   BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this Resolution be certified to the Register 

of Deeds of Currituck County and recorded in the Currituck County Registry. 

   This the 17th day of November, 2014.  

      
       By:_________________________________ 
             S. Paul O’Neal, Chair 
             Board of Commissioners 
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
 

 The undersigned certifies under the seal of the County of Currituck that she is the Clerk 

to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Currituck and as such is the custodian of the 

minute books containing minutes of its official meetings and the custodian of its official 

documents and that the foregoing and attached Resolution ordering the closing of a cul-de-sac 

located on Coral Lane, Walnut Island Subdivision, Block 2, Section 7 is a true and perfect copy 

of the original thereof contained and recorded in Minute Book _____, Page _____ containing the 

 

 
 

 2 

8



minutes of said meeting of said Board of Commissioners held on November 17, 2014. 

 Certified to the Register of Deeds of Pasquotank County this the ____ day of _________, 

2014. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Leeann Walton 
       Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of 
       Currituck County, North Carolina 
 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
 

 I, _______________________, a Notary Public of the aforesaid State and County of 

___________________ do hereby certify that Leeann Walton personally came before me this day 

and acknowledged that she is Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, a body 

corporate and politic, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the corporation, the 

foregoing instrument was sealed with its corporate seal, and she further acknowledged the due 

execution of the foregoing certification and under oath swore to the matters therein certified. 

 Witness my hand notarial seal this the ____ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
        Notary Public 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
My commission expires:____________________ 
 
 
  
 (NOTARY SEAL) 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 3 

9



10

imcree
Callout
Cul-de sac proposed for closure

imcree
Oval



11



12



13



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title 
 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine requests a use permit to operate an extractive industry (sand mine) on property 
owned by Bitterweet Farms, LLC located in Powells Point at 8528 Caratoke Highway, PIN  0124-000-137J-0000, Poplar 
Branch Township. 
 
 
Brief Description of Agenda Item 
 
H. D. Newbern, III, F & H Land Development, Inc. is requesting a use permit for a 13.2 acre sand mining operation on 
property owned by Bittersweet Farms, LLC.  The request is to permit the existing excavation area of 12.29 acres and an 
expansion of 0.80 acres  (13.09 total acres).  The state permit is to allow 13.2 acres and the applicant is requesting the 
county permit be issued for the state permitted area of 13.2 acres.  
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 14-25 with the findings of fact, technical review committee recommendations, and 
staff recommendation included in the case analysis.  Ms. Newbern seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
Board Action Requested 
 
Action 
 
 
Person Submitting Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 
 
Presenter of Agenda Item 
 
 
Ben Woody 
 

14



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE: November 17, 2014 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

 
ITEM:   PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine request for a use permit to operate 

an extractive industry (sand mining)  
 

LOCATION: Powells Point - 8528 Caratoke Highway, Poplar Branch Township   
 
TAX ID: 0124-000-137J-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: HI – Heavy Industrial   
 GB – General Business 
 AG - Agricultural    
  
PRESENT USE: Inactive mining operation 
  Industrial storage area 
   
OWNER: Bitterweeet Farms, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:  H.D. Newbern, III, F&H Land Development 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Industrial/Business/Residential/Undeveloped HI/GB/AG  
SOUTH Residential/Warehouse/Industrial GB/LI/AG 
EAST:  Residential/Warehouse/Golf Course GB/MXR/AG 
WEST: Albemarle Sound N/A 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service and 

Conservation within the Point Harbor subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 314.56 acres 
 
COMMUNITY MEETING: A community meeting was held on August 25, 2014.  The community 

concerns included impacts to land and water levels in existing, 
adjacent ponds, impacts of in use wells, application authority, and 
existing violations.    

 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• H.D. Newbern, III submitted a use permit application to allow an unpermitted sand 
mine operation at 8528 Caratoke Highway on property owned by Bittersweet Farms, 
LLC.  NCDENR issued a mining permit (27-50) and dewatering permit (NCG020000) 
for the Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine to Curtis S. Balance DBA Griggs Sand Company.   

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 1 of 11 

15



• A written request was submitted to NCDENR in August to transfer the permit ownership 
to H.D. Newbern, III. 

• The proposed mining activities are located on a 314.56 acre tract.  The total mine will 
consist of the following: 

o 12.29 acres existing excavation areas (boundary) 
o 0.80 acre proposed excavation expansion 
o The state permit was issued for a 13.2 acre sand mine and the applicant is 

requesting the county permit be issued for 13.2 acres as well. 
• The applicant proposes to expand the mine by 0.80 acres and mine the existing pond 

to an expected average depth of 25 feet and a maximum depth of 30 feet.    In 
addition, the proposed dewatering will be approximately 20 feet below the seasonal 
high water level.   

• The property contains an existing cemetery and the existing excavation edge is 
located at or near the cemetery boundary.  Current mine depths of 4-6 feet will be 
maintained within the 150’ cemetery setback. 

• In order to establish groundwater baseline measurements, the applicant will install four 
groundwater level monitoring wells as identified on the plan and two staff gauges in 
existing ponds (Foltz pond and Griggs field pond). 

• The applicant will install enhanced ditching along the northeast permit boundary of the 
Griggs Sand Mine for use during dewatering activities.   

• The applicant provided a written warranty for water supply wells located within 200 
feet of the Griggs sand mine for 10 years.  The warranty will include the repair or 
replacement of the pump and/or replacement and installation of a new well.  In the 
event valid problems or complaints arise from the use of dewatering activities at 
Griggs Sand Mine, F&H Land Development will immediately cease dewatering 
operations until all problems have been resolved.   

• The mining operation is bordered by the Harbinger Marshes that are identified as a 
significant natural heritage area.   

 
II. USE PERMIT REVIEW STANDARDS: 

Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and staff findings of 
fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

 
Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
 
Suggested Findings: 

a. The sand mine area will only be accessible through a gated, private access road 
to prevent inadvertent public entry, controlled by operator and landowner.   

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 2 of 11 

16



b. The mine will be screened from public view by distance and existing trees and 
foliage around all sides of the permit area.   

c. “No Trespassing” signs will be posted every 250 feet around the perimeter of the 
mine.   

d. Groundwater monitoring wells and pond level monitoring stations will be 
established on the lands east of the permit area to monitor and help prevent 
possible adverse effects of excavation activities to the water table. 

 
2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with the 

area in which it is located. 
 
Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will 
be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 
 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The excavation area is located 2,900 feet from the nearest public highway and 1,750 

feet from the nearest dwelling. 
b. The permit area is located behind an existing visual screen of full-growth trees, fields, 

and wetlands on all sides. 
c. Current primary use of property is industrial (Barnhill Contracting storage yard 1,400 

feet east) and agricultural.  The proposed use will not decrease value of the site or 
that of adjacent properties. 

d. The permit area is located in lightly populated HI (Heavy Industrial) zoned area.  
Sand mining is an accepted use in the HI zone with a use permit.   

e. Griggs Sand Mine will conform to the harmony of area by use of foliated perimeter 
berms and full ground cover on affected areas during and after use. 
At the end of the use a reclaimed pond will serve as wildlife habitat and recreational 
addition to the landowner’s property. 

 
3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan. 

 
Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use will 
be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans. 
 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service and Conservation within the Point 
Harbor subarea.  Although a majority of the proposed mining operation is located within 
the Full Service area, a small portion of the existing operation is located in the 
Conservation subarea.   With respect to nonresidential uses in the Full Service area, it is 
essential that the existing community character be preserved.   The policy emphasis for the 
Point Harbor subarea in the LUP is to allow portions of Point Harbor to continue to evolve 
as a full service community with policies that will work to preserve and enhance the 
appearance along US 158, place stricter controls over mining to assure that such 
operations do not adversely impact nearby areas, cluster retail and service businesses, 
require vegetated buffers around nonresidential uses to protect existing planned 
neighborhoods, require vegetated buffers along shorelines to preserve public access and 
open space, and coordinate with NCDOT for strategic placement of traffic signals along 
US 158.     

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 3 of 11 

17



 
The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 

 
POLICY ID8:  MINING ACTIVITIES, or secondary impacts of mining activities not subject to 
permit approval by the State of North Carolina, may be subject to review and 
management by Currituck County.  Activities to be addressed may include, but not be 
limited to, the adequacy of roads serving the mine site, visual impacts during operation 
and after closing of the mine site, noise and dust considerations, etc.   

 
4. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, but 

not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 
facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be in place within 
two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of major subdivisions). 
 
Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use will 
not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but not 
limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.   
 
Staff Findings: 
a. The access road to the mine permit area is a wide, paved, and gravel surfaced that 

permits full access to emergency or law enforcement vehicles. 
b. Permanent buildings and public utilities are not proposed in the permitted area.  

 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
conditional approval subject to the following permit conditions: 
 
1. The 150 foot cemetery setback shall be properly marked and maintained during the 

mining activities.  No excavation associated with this permit shall take place within the 150 
setback.   The existing significant vegetation located around the perimeter of the 
cemetery shall be preserved for stabilization and a visual screen.     

2. Staff gauges shall be installed in existing ponds (Foltz pond and Griggs field pond) to 
monitor water levels.  Measurements shall be collected monthly prior to commencing 
dewatering operations to establish baseline water levels and monthly thereafter with 
quarterly reports submitted to Currituck County until the mine is reclaimed. 

3. Four groundwater level monitoring wells shall be installed in accordance with the Permit 
Area Mining Plan.  Measurements shall be collected monthly prior to commencing 
dewatering operations to establish baseline water levels and monthly thereafter with 
quarterly reports submitted to Currituck County until the mine is reclaimed. 

4. Construct and maintain enhanced ditching along the northeastern permit boundary of the 
mining operation for use during dewatering operations in accordance with the Permit Area 
Mining Plan and specifications.    

5. In the event an in-use well is adversely affected within 2000 feet of the Wilber Griggs 
Sand Mine for a period of 10 years from the date the use permit is granted, dewatering 
operations shall cease until all problems related to the contamination or diminution of 
groundwater are resolved.   

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 4 of 11 

18



Item for the Board to consider: 

 

6. The UDO allows mining activities from dawn to dusk Monday through Saturday.  To 
reduce the traffic concerns, the board may include a condition that would prohibit hauling 
on Saturday from Memorial Day to Labor Day. 

 

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  

Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 14-25 with the findings of fact, technical review 
committee recommendations, and staff recommendation included in the case analysis.  Ms. 
Newbern seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

  

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 5 of 11 

19



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (10/14/14) 

Mr. Cooper said even though the mine is not active there is a current state permit for it. 
Expanding the mine by 0.80 acres would still fall within the guidelines of the current state permit. 
 
Ms. Voliva stated yes. 
 
Mr. Cooper asked if the offsite pond, which will be used for monitoring, does the applicant have 
permission to use. 
 
Ms. Voliva stated the applicant has provided written permission from the landowner. 
 
Mr. Elliott provided an overview of the request.  Quarterly reports will be provided to the county 
and the state. 
 
Mr. Cooper asked about the dewatering process. 
 
Mr. Elliott said the applicant will install enhanced ditching along the northeast permit boundary of 
the mine for use during dewatering activities. 
 
Mr. Cooper said it is his understanding the applicant will install four groundwater level monitoring 
wells, and two staff gauges in existing ponds (Foltz pond and Griggs field pond).  
 
Mr. Newbern talked about how the water will flow off the property during dewatering.  
 
Mr. Wright asked what will happen if a future development should be proposed for the 
surrounding area. 
 
Ms. Voliva said if a development should build up they will be aware that there is an active mine 
operating.  
 
Ms. Ballance, co-manager of Bittersweet Farms, LLC said all the rules and regulations have been 
met she hopes the board will approve this request.  
 
Mr. Ballance, co-manager of Bittersweet Farms, LLC hopes the board will approve this request.   
 
Mr. Ray Griggs said this property is currently owned by Bittersweet Farms, LLC, which is a family 
business.  The property was owned by his father and when he passed away it was given to his 
mother. Mr. Ray Griggs said his mother recently passed away and her estate has not been 
settled. Mr. Ray Griggs is asking the board to table this request until his mother’s estate and legal 
litigation is settled. 
 
Mr. Ken Griggs said he and his brother (Ray Griggs) are representing eleven out of thirteen 
members of the LLC.  Mr. Ken Griggs is asking the board to table this request until his mother’s 
estate and legal litigation is settled. 
 
Mr. Cooper said it is the Planning Board’s understanding that staff and the county are satisfied 
with the signatures on the application and it is considered a complete application. 
  

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 6 of 11 

20



Ms. Voliva said yes it is considered a complete application. One of the requirements of a 
complete application is that the owner signs it.  The North Carolina Department of The Secretary 
of State office does list Pamela Ballance as one of the managing members of the LLC, so they 
have met the requirement of filing the application.  
 
Mr. Ken Griggs said the board may want to talk to the county attorney before this request moves 
forward.  Mr. Griggs said they did attend the community meeting and voice their concerns. 
 
Mr. Cooper closed the public hearing. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 14-25 with the findings of fact, technical review committee 
recommendations, and staff recommendation included in the case analysis.  Ms. Newbern 
seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 7 of 11 

21



 

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 8 of 11 

22



 

 
 
 

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 9 of 11 

23



To:   H. D. Newbern III, F & H Land Development Inc. 
 Shay Balance, Bittersweet Farms, LLC 
 Ken Elliott, Elliott Consulting 
 
From: Donna Voliva, Senior Planner 
  
Date: September 17, 2014 
 
Subject: PB 25 Wilber Griggs Sand Mine, Use Permit  TRC Comments 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the September 17, 2014 TRC meeting.  All 
revisions must be submitted by noon on September 22, 2014 in order for your request to be 
scheduled for the October 14, 2014 Planning Board meeting.  The TRC comments are valid for six 
months from the date of the TRC meeting. 
 
Planning, Donna Voliva 
Reviewed 

1. The property owner must sign the application. 
2. Please clarify the acreages of the existing and proposed ponds and excavation areas. 
3. Identify the boundaries of the cemetery located on the property.  The county regulations 

do not permit more than a 50% setback reduction (150’) from the excavation activities.   
4. Provide a copy of the wetland delineation from the US Army Corps of Engineers. 
5. The planning staff will recommend monitoring wells and testing for quality and water 

levels. 
 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved with corrections 

1. Show exact location of four proposed monitoring wells for county approval. 
2. Determine if state approval is required for the four proposed monitoring wells. 
3. Provide construction details of the four proposed monitoring wells for county approval. 
4. Provide staff gauges in the two ponds for level monitoring. 
5. Provide written permission from Mr. Foltz to use his pond for groundwater level 

monitoring. 
6. Establish a timetable between construction of the monitoring wells and beginning 

dewatering operations to determine existing groundwater levels. 
7. Install enhanced ditching around the pit with flashboard risers as discussed in the report. 
8. Provide a legal method to guarantee immediate replacement of any of the tree existing 

wells within the 200 foot area of concern should the owners complain their well has “gone 
dry” or degraded in quality.  Also, guarantee dewatering operations will immediately 
stop until any private well issue is resolved. 

 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 252-232-3007 
No comment 
 
 
 
 

PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 
Use Permit 

Page 10 of 11 

24



Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved 
 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed 

1. ANY MINING PONDS MUST BE LOCATED A MINIMUM 50 FEET FROM ANY 
PRIVATE WELL AND A MINIMUM 50 FEET FROM ANY SEPTIC 
SYSTEM/SEPTIC SYSTEM REPAIR AREAS. 

 
Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed 
 
Currituck County Fire Marshal, James Mims 252-232-6641 
Approved 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
No comment 
 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  252-264-3901  
No comment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PB 14-25  Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine 

Use Permit 
Page 11 of 11 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title

PB  14-27  Street Instersection Separation Standards –  Request to amend the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 6: Subdivision and Infrastructure Standards, to modify the street intersection 
standards of the UDO. 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

The proposed text amendment, submitted by Bissell Professional Group, would modify the street intersection separtation 
standards of the UDO. Currently all intersections must be sparated by 400, and all intersections with a major arterial street 
must be sepatered by 1,000 feet. This amendment would reduce the required separation and base it off the type and 
speed limit of the street.  NCDOT has reviewed the proposed language and found it to be more conservative than their 
standards.  

Planning Board Recommendation: 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 14-27 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is 
reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth and development.  Ms. Bell seconded the motion and 
motion carried unanimously. 

Board Action Requested

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

88



  Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

From: Planning Staff 

Date: October 21, 2014 

Subject: PB 14-27 Street Intersection Separation Standards 

The enclosed text amendment submitted by Bissell Professional Group modifies the street intersection 
separation standards of the UDO.  Currently all intersections must be separated by 400 feet, and all 
intersections with a major arterial street must be separated by 1,000 feet.   

As the county continues to see growth, it is becoming more difficult for developments to meet the current 
separation standards as adjacent developments or environmentally sensitive areas may prevent new 
streets from being installed in logical and safe areas.  The county also allows for more clustered and 
smaller lot development through MXR and Planned Development zoning, and conservation subdivisions.  
Due to the smaller lot sizes, it is often impractical to require the intersections to be 400 feet apart.  

Staff has worked with Bissell Professional Group on this application and has prepared language that 
reduces the separation standards.  Under this proposal, the separation of intersections is based off the 
type and speed limit of the street.  Interior subdivision streets typically do not need a large separation in 
order to maintain safe vehicular travel; while intersections on heavily traveled streets with high speed 
limits do need a wider separation in order to provide for adequate reaction time.  NCDOT has 
reviewed the proposed language and has found it to be more conservative than their standards.    

Staff recommends approval of this request as it: 
1. Is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Land Use Plan and other applicable

county-adopted plans; 

POLICY HN3: Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of residential 
development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban sprawl: 

1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, preserving
permanently dedicated open space and often employ on-site or community sewage 
treatment. These types of developments are likely to occur primarily in the Conservation, 
Rural, and to a certain extent the Limited Service areas identified on the Future Land 
Use Map. 

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR A MIXTURE OF
USES that promote a return to balanced, self-supporting community centers generally 
served by centralized water and sewer. The types of development are contemplated 
for the Full Service Areas identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

2. Is not in conflict with any provision of this UDO or the County Code of Ordinance;

PB 14-27 
Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 

Page 1 of 9 

89



3. Addresses a demonstrated community need;
4. Is consistent with the purpose and intent of the zoning districts in the UDO, or would improve

compatibility among users and ensure efficient development within the county;
5. Would result in logical and orderly development pattern; and
6. Would not result in significantly adverse impacts on the natural environment, including but not

limited to water, air, noise, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, and the
natural functioning of the environment.

The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their October 14, 2014 meeting. 

PB 14-27 
Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 

Page 2 of 9 

90



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (10/14/14) 

Ms. Overstreet asked how this request will affect NC12. 

Mr. Schuler said it would reduce the current standards of the UDO as it applies to NC12 now. 
When you get up to 55 mph there is a 1000 foot separation, but the county does allow this to 
be reduced as the speed limit goes down.  

Ms. Overstreet asked if this will change any of the existing driveways or intersections that are 
on NC12 now. 

Mr. Schuler said no, it would apply to new development. 

Mr. Cooper asked how this would affect the 120 foot lots on NC12. 

Mr. Schuler said the proposed language allows for the Planning Director to reduce the 
standards upon advice from NCDOT, exactly like the driveway standards. 

Mr. Bissell complimented Mr. Schuler on doing a good job with this text amendment. The current 
UDO does not provide an opportunity for an exception to the standard.  

Mr. Cooper closed the public hearing. 

ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 14-27 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan 
and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth and 
development.  Ms. Bell seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 

PB 14-27 
Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 

Page 3 of 9 

91



Street Intersection Spacing Standards 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 5: Development Standards, and 
Chapter 6: Subdivision and Infrastructure Standards to revise the street intersection spacing 
standards of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 

Item 1: That Section 5.6.7 Driveway and Access Standards is amended by adding the 
following underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 

E. Restricted Access Streets 

(2)  Minimum Separation  

(a) A lot fronting a restricted access street shall 
maintain minimum separation distances between 
driveways or intersecting streets in accordance with 
Table 5.6.7.E.3, Minimum Separation.  

TTAABBLLEE  55..66..77..EE..33::  MMIINNIIMMUUMM  SSEEPPAARRAATTIIOONN  

HIGHWAY STREET DESIGN 

SPEED (MPH) 

MINIMUM 

DRIVEWAY/STREET 

CENTERLINE 

SEPARATION (FT) 
Up to 35 230 125 
Over 35 300 200 

Item 2: That Section 6.2 Required Infrastructure is amended by adding the following 
underlined language, reorganizing the existing language, deleting the strikethrough language, 
and replacing the graphic: 

C. Street Design Standards 

(5)  Street Intersections  

(a) Design 

(i) Streets shall intersect as nearly as possible at 
right angles and not intersect any other 

PB 14-27 
Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 

Page 4 of 9 

92



street at an angle less than 70 degrees (see 
Figure 6.2.1.C, Street Intersections). 

 (ii)  No more than two streets shall intersect at 
any one point unless the NCDOT certifies 
that such an intersection can be constructed 
with no extraordinary danger to public 
safety. 

(b) Minimum Separation 

(i) New streets shall maintain minimum 
separation distances between intersections 
in accordance with Table 6.2.1.C, Minimum 
Intersection Separation. 

TTAABBLLEE  66..22..11..CC::  MMIINNIIMMUUMM  IINNTTEERRSSEECCTTIIOONN  SSEEPPAARRAATTIIOONN  ((FFTT))[[11]]

TYPE OF STREET 
STREET DESIGN SPEED (MPH) 

UP TO 35 36-54 55+ 
Local 125 125 200 
Collector 125 200 200 
Major Arterial 230 800 1,000 
[1] Measurements shall be taken from the centerline of each 

intersecting street. 

(ii)  The Planning Director, upon advice of 
NCDOT, may authorize a reduction in 
minimum separation distance due to lot 
width, presence of existing streets or curb 
cuts, or other physical features that make 
compliance with these standards impractical. 

(c) Intersections with a major arterial street shall be at 
least 1,000 feet from another intersection.  

(d) Intersections with all other streets shall be at least 
400 feet from another intersection (all 
measurements shall be taken from the centerlines 
of each intersecting street). 

PB 14-27 
Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 

Page 5 of 9 

93



(e) Street jogs shall maintain centerline offsets that are 
a minimum of 400 feet apart. 

(6) Street Lengths 

 (a) Streets shall be longer than 150 feet in length.   

(b) Streets longer than 2,000 feet shall contain an 
intersection unless the subdivder demonstrates the 
standards cannot be met because: 
(i) Environmental or topographic constraints; 

(ii)  The site has an irregular shape; or, 

(iii)  The number of railroad grade or major 
stream crossings can be reduced; 

Figure 6.2.1.C, Street Intersections 

PB 14-27 
Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 

Page 6 of 9 

94



Item 3: That Section 6.2.2 Blocks is amended by deleting the following strikethrough language: 

6.2.2 Blocks 

New blocks in the SFO, MXR, GB, CC, and VC districts shall comply with 
the following standards: 

A. Block Length 

(1)    No block lengths shall be less than 200 linear feet long. 

PB 14-27 
Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 

Page 7 of 9 

95



(2)  Block length shall be limited to 1,000 linear feet, unless 
the subdivider demonstrates the standards cannot be met 
because: 

(a) Environmental or topographic constraints exist, 
requiring longer blocks; 

(b) A site has an irregular shape; 
(c) A longer block will reduce the number of railroad 

grade or major stream crossings; 
(d) A longer block is necessary to comply with driveway 

or intersection spacing requirements; or 
(e) A longer block will result in less traffic through residential 

subdivisions from adjoining businesses or areas. 

B. Block Width 

To the maximum extent practicable, the width of any block shall 
be sufficient to permit at least two tiers of lots of appropriate 
depth for the zoning district exclusive of any public alleys, 
watercourses, or other right-of-way located outside platted lots. 

Item 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 

Item 5: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of    , 2014. 

Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 

Clerk to the Board 

DATE ADOPTED: 
PB 14-27 

Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 
Page 8 of 9 

96



MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER: 
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER: 

VOTE:   AYES  NAYS  
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:  
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:   

VOTE:   AYES      NAYS      
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:  
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE: 
AMENDMENT NUMBER:  

PB 14-27 
Street Intersection Separation Text Amendment 

Page 9 of 9 

97



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title

PB 14-26: Request for preliminary plat/use permit for a 5 lot subdivision located in Currituck on the east side of Tulls Creek 
Road, approximately 600 feet north of Brumsey Road, Tax Map 49, Parcel 82C, Crawford Township. 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

H. Kim Old is requesting preliminary plat/use permit approval for a proposed 5 lot subdivision.  The proposed lots will be 
served by county water and on-site septic tanks.  The proposed development density is .37 units per acre based on the 
gross acreage of the tract. 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
Mr. Bell moved to approve PB 14-26 with the findings of fact and the technical review committee recommendations 
included in the case analysis.  Ms. Bell seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously.  

Board Action Requested

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

98



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: November 17, 2014 
PB 14-26 Old Bay Ridge 

ITEM:  PB 14-26 Old Bay Ridge, Preliminary Plat/Use Permit for a 5 lot 
residential subdivision.  

LOCATION: Currituck, approximately 600 feet north of Brumsey Road on the east side 
of Tulls Creek Road, Crawford Township. 

TAX ID: 0049-000-082C-0000 

ZONING DISTRICT: Single-Family Mainland (SFM)  

PRESENT USE: Undeveloped, wooded site 

OWNER/ 
APPLICANT: H. Kim Old 

PO Box 428 
Moyock, NC  27958 

LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
Land Use Zoning 

NORTH: Undeveloped/farmland/Residential 
(Wedgewood Lakes Subdivision) 

SFM 

SOUTH Residential SFM 
EAST: Undeveloped/Farmland/Residential 

(Brumsey Landing Subdivision) 
SFM 

WEST: Residential SFM 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as a Limited Service Area 

within the Courthouse subarea. 

SIZE OF SITE: 13.5 acres (total tract) 

NUMBER OF UNITS: 5 Residential lots 

PROJECT DENSITY: .37 units per acre 

OPEN SPACE: 4.05 acres required open space (30% of the total tract) 
6.66 acres provided open space 

UTILITIES: The individual lots will be served by county water and on-site septic 
systems.     

PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 1 

99



I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 
1. The property owner is requesting preliminary plat/special use permit approval of a 5 lot

residential subdivision with an overall project density of .37 units per acre. 
2. This subdivision is considered a Type II major as the property is located on the same

parent parcel as other major subdivisions, Brumsey Landing and Brumsey Ridge. 
3. Of the 13.5 acres, 6.32 acres are wetlands. A 50 foot wetland buffer is required around

the wetlands and is located within the proposed lots.  Due to the location of the wetlands 
and required buffer, the applicant is proposing to install the street (Jasons Trail) 
approximately 125 feet from an existing intersection.  This is not meeting the UDO 
requirement of having all intersections be separated by 400 feet.  However, the applicant 
has submitted a text amendment application (PB 14-27) that would allow for a reduction 
in the intersection spacing requirements.  That text amendment application would have to 
be approved in order for this proposed subdivision to comply with the UDO. 

4. The applicant is proposing to keep a 5’ landscaped buffer between the road right-of-
way and the adjoining lot.  Also, the applicant is proposing to preserve existing 
vegetation within Lot 2 along Tulls Creek Road.  

5. The applicant will identify any heritage trees within the proposed development area with
the construction drawings.  Any heritage trees located must comply with the tree protection 
standards of the UDO. 

6. Payment in lieu of parkland dedication is being proposed for this subdivision.  The
payment is in the amount of $892.  

II. USE PERMIT REVIEW STANDARDS:
Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings:
Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties.

In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and staff findings of
fact are outlined as follows:

1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety.
Based on the suggested finding provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
Suggested Finding: 
a. The use will adhere to county health and safety standards, including

recommendations made by Albemarle Regional Health Services, except for the 
one remote lot, no lot will connect directly to Tulls Creek Road. The project should 
not adversely affect the public health or safety.  

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with the
area in which it is located.

Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is 
probably true that the use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and 
will be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 

PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 2 

100



 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Tracts to the north and east have been developed into single family homes; the 

developable portion of this tract will be developed in a manner that is similar to 
other developments in the area.  50’ wetland buffers are provided. A tree buffer 
to Tulls Creek Road is being provided along lot 2.  

b. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in 
harmony with the area. 

 
3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan. 

Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use 
will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plans. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Limited Service within the Courthouse 
subarea.   
 
The Limited Service area identifies a residential base development density to be 1 unit 
per acre, but could be increased to 1.5 units per acre through overlay zoning 
depending upon services available and potential impacts on the surrounding area.   
 
The policy emphasis for the Courthouse subarea indicates in areas where on-site 
wastewater is proposed and other County services are limited, development density 
should be limited to 1-2 units per acre.  The proposed development density is 0.37 
units per acre. 
 
The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 
 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at densities 

appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND DENSITY FACTORS shall include 
whether the development is within an environmentally suitable area, the type and 
capacity of sewage treatment available to the site, the adequacy of 
transportation facilities providing access to the site, and the proximity of the site to 
existing and planned urban services. For example, projects falling within the Full 
Services areas of the Future Land Use Map would be permitted a higher density 
because of the availability of infrastructure as well as similarity to the existing 
development pattern. Such projects could be developed at a density of two (2) or 
more dwelling units per acre. Projects within areas designated as Limited Service 
would be permitted a density of one (1) to one and one half (1.5) units per acre 
depending upon the surrounding development pattern and availability of 
resources. Projects within areas designated as Rural or Conservation by the Future 
Land Use Plan would be permitted a much lower density of 1 dwelling unit per 3 
acres because of the lack of infrastructure in the area, the existing low density 
development pattern, and presence of environmentally sensitive natural areas. 

 
POLICY PR6: All new residential development shall provide for ADEQUATE OPEN 

SPACE AND RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS including, as may be appropriate, 
funding in proportion to the demand created by the development. The amount of 
open space and improvements may be determined according to the number of 
dwelling units in the development and/or by a percentage of the total acreage in 

  PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
  Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 
  Page 3 

101



the development. Fees in lieu of land dedication shall be based on the inflation 
adjusted assessed value of the development or subdivision for property tax 
purposes. 

POLICY ES2: NON-COASTAL WETLANDS, including FRESHWATER SWAMPS, AND 
INLAND, NON-TIDAL WETLANDS, shall be conserved for the important role they 
play in absorbing floodwaters, filtering pollutants from stormwater runoff, 
recharging the ground water table, and providing critical habitat for many plant 
and animal species. Currituck County supports the efforts of the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers in protecting such wetlands through the Section 4042 permit program of 
the Clean Water Act, as well as Section 4013 water quality certifications by the 
State of North Carolina. 

POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE SITE, 
including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be 
encouraged. If COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS are considered part 
of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot size or development 
density, Low Impact Development techniques or appropriate buffers shall be 
integrated into the development. Open space developments shall be encouraged 
to REDUCE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREAS associated with new development and 
redevelopment. 

4. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, but
not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public
facilities are adequate.
Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use will
not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including but not
limited to schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.
Suggested Findings:
a. Based on the student generation rates, this subdivision will generate the following

students:
i. 1 elementary student
ii. 0 middle school student
iii. 1 high school student

b. The proposed development will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate
public facilities

III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends
conditional approval of the proposed 5 lot residential subdivision with the following
conditions:

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:
Mr. Bell moved to approve PB 14-26 with the findings of fact and the technical review
committee recommendations included in the case analysis.  Ms. Bell seconded the motion and
motion carried unanimously.

PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 4 

102



Use Permit Conditions 
1. NCDOT must review and approve the proposed street layout prior to approval of the

preliminary plat.
2. A 5’ landscaped buffer shall be provided and maintained along the southern side of the

proposed right-of-way.
3. Existing landscaping shall be preserved within Lot 2 along Tulls Creek Road.
4. Currituck County will accept payment in lieu of recreation and park area dedication in

accordance with the UDO.

THE APPLICATION AND RELATED MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE COUNTY’S 
WEBSITE 

http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm 

PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 5 

103



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (10/20/14) 
Mr. Bissell provided an overview of the project. Mr. Bissell said the area between Lots 1 and 2 
there is an existing pond, which all the stormwater can be run too.  
 
Ms. Bell asked if the 6.66 acres of open space provided could be changed to 6.67 acres. 
 
Mr. Bissell said they could make that change. 
 
Mr. Cooper asked if the fire flow will be okay. 
 
Mr. Bissell said as long as they stay under 48,000 sq. ft. per lot they will be fine. 
 
Mr. Old said the subdivision is single family zoning, the wetland delineation and site evaluations 
have been completed, and asking the board for approval. 
 
Mr. Cooper closed the public hearing. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Bell moved to approve PB 14-26 with the findings of fact and the technical review committee 
recommendations included in the case analysis.  Ms. Bell seconded the motion and motion carried 
unanimously.  

  PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
  Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 
  Page 6 

104



PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 7 

105



PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 8 

106



MEMORANDUM 

To:  Kim Old 
Mark Bissell, PE – Bissell Professional Group 

From: Brad Schuler 
Planner I 

Date: September 11, 2014 

Re:  Type II Major Subdivision – Old Bay Ridge 

The following comments have been received for the September 11, 2014 TRC meeting. 
Modifications of the request must be submitted by September 22, 2014 in order to remain on the 
October 14, 2014 Planning Board agenda.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date 
of the TRC meeting. 

Planning, Brad Schuler 
Approved with Comments 

1. Plat corrections:
a. Please correct the north arrow.
b. Add 10’ x 70’ site triangles to the intersection of Wyatt and Tulls Creek.
c. Add the zoning of the adjacent property (SFM).
d. According to the state permit, the max lot coverage is 24% (note 19).

2. Lot 2 must connect to Wyatt’s Way.  A 5’ non-access easement must be established along
property line adjoining Tulls Creek Road.

3. Will the street trees required along the southern side of Wyatt’s Way be installed
elsewhere in the development?

4. Are there any heritage trees located on the property? If so, are any being removed?
5. Due to the minimal length of the street and the number of lots that access it, the sidewalk

will not be required.
6. The tax value of the property is $94,400.  Please update the recreation and park area

dedication payment-in-lieu calculation.
7. Please provide a NCDOT encroachment agreement by construction drawings.
8. Approval is contingent on the Board of Commissioners amending the UDO to reduce the

required intersection spacing.

Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 
Reviewed 

1. New construction needed fire flow may not exceed available flow.

Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
Currituck County Soil & Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved with Comments 

1. Please explain reference to 1.5" rain event in note about minimum building pad and
finished floor elevations. 

PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 

Page 9 

107



 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved with Comments 

1. Show the waterline on the plans. 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello  
Approved 

1. BOJAC well drained. 
ALTAVISTA ? 

 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed 

1. Please consult with Kevin Carver at 252-232-6603 concerning septic system approval for 
each lot which make up this subdivision.  
 

Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Denied/Resubmit 

1. Wyatts Way can not be used as a street name. This name already exists elsewhere in the 
county. Jasons Trl can be used as a street name. Please resubmit plat with revised street 
name. 

 
Currituck Parks & Rec, Jason Weeks 
No Comment 
 
NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No Comment 

1. No previously recorded sites noted in the project area. An archaeological survey is not 
recommended. No Comment. 

 
NCDENR - Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens 
No Comment 
 
 
The following items are necessary for resubmittal: 

• 3 - full size copies of revised plans. 
• 1- 8.5”x11” copy of all revised plans. 
• 1- PDF digital copy of all revised or new documents and plans. 

 
 
 
 

  PB 14-26  Old Bay Ridge 
  Preliminary Plat/Use Permit 
  Page 10 

108



109



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title

PB  14-16 Lake View at Currituck request for a development agreement between Currituck County  and Survey Road, LLC 
for property located in Moyock on Survey Road west of the intersection with Caratoke Highway, PIN 001500000830000, 
Moyock Township. 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

The Development Agreement proposed between the Developer and Currituck County requires that the Developer 
install a new oversized public sewer force main to connect the Lake View at Currituck subdivision to the Moyock 
Central Sewer System.  The sewer mains, pump stations, and appurtenances subject to the development 
agreement will be dedicated to the county upon completion and acceptance by the Technical Review Committee.  
Through approval of the development agreement the county will reserve capacity in in the Moyock Central Sewer 
System for the build out of the Lake View at Currituck subdivision and will consider the cost of installation of the 
sewer force main as a cost of development for the purpose of establishing zoning vested rights.  Detailed 
obligations of the Developer and county are included in the draft Development Agreement. 

Planning Board Recommendation: 
Mr. Craddock moved to approve PB 14-16 due to its consistency with the Moyock Small Area Plan and 
the 2006 Land Use Plan and the request is reasonable and in the public interest and does promote 
orderly growth and development.  Mr. Cooper seconded the motion and motion carried unanimously. 

Board Action Requested

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

110



Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

From: Planning Staff 

Date: November 6, 2014 

Subject: PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck – Development Agreement, Amended 
Preliminary Plat and Use Permit 

James O. Myers submitted an application for a Development Agreement between Survey Road, 
LLC (the “Developer”) and Currituck County for the proposed Lake View at Currituck subdivision 
located at 120 Survey Road in the Moyock Township.  The use of a development agreement is 
authorized in North Carolina General Statutes 153A-379.1– 153A-379.13 and Section 2.4.18 of 
the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance (UDO); the purpose and intent of a 
development agreement is to: 

1. Encourage comprehensive planning and capital facilities planning;
2. Ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development;
3. Encourage the efficient use of resources, while providing certainty in the process of

obtaining development permits and approvals; and
4. Reduce the economic costs of development by providing greater regulatory certainty.

The Development Agreement proposed between the Developer and Currituck County requires 
that the Developer install a new oversized public sewer force main to connect the Lake View at 
Currituck subdivision to the Moyock Central Sewer System.  The sewer mains, pump stations, and 
appurtenances subject to the development agreement will be dedicated to the county upon 
completion and acceptance by the Technical Review Committee.  Through approval of the 
development agreement the county will reserve capacity in in the Moyock Central Sewer System 
for the build out of the Lake View at Currituck subdivision and will consider the cost of installation 
of the sewer force main as a cost of development for the purpose of establishing zoning vested 
rights.  Detailed obligations of the Developer and county are included in the Conditions section of 
the Development Agreement. 

The Developer is also submitting an amended sketch plan and preliminary plat for approval, as 
well as requesting modifications to the current (special) use permit.  The significant changes to the 
plan include: 

1. Removal of road connection through Eagle Creek open space.  The third entrance road
across Eagle Creek open space is proposed for removal.  The entrance roads in the
subdivision were reviewed by a traffic engineer and NCDOT and the revised plans reflect
the recommendations.

2. Reduction in sidewalks and widths.  The applicant is requesting removal of sidewalks from
one side of the street and footbridge over the lake.  The resubmitted plans now include

111



sidewalks along one side of the street interconnected in open space and neighborhood 
commercial areas.   

3. Removal of county dedication, increase in commercial area, and decrease in open space.  The
1.75 acre tract previously dedicated to the county on the preliminary plat is proposed to
revert to the developer, allocated for commercial, and removed from open space in
exchange for installing a 6 inch sewer force main off-site of the development.  (See
Development Agreement)

4. Reduction in street intersection separation.  The approved preliminary plat provides
intersection separation of approximately 270 feet for the interconnection street (formally
known as Chip’s Road).   The revised plans reduce that spacing to approximately 175’
which is below the approved separation (270’ approximate) and the current UDO
requirement (400’).   Bissell Professional Group submitted a text amendment to reduce
intersection separation.  The planned street interconnectivity is consistent with the proposed
text amendment.  If the board does not approve the text amendment the sketch plan and
preliminary plat must be modified to meet the minimum required separation provided on
the current approved plan (270’)

5. Revised phasing plan.
6. Removed specific playground equipment summary for pocket parks.
7. Reduction in structure setbacks/drainage easements.  The approved preliminary plan allows

setbacks to be as follows:
a. 20’ setback to NCDOT 50’ right of way and 22’ setback to back of curb.
b. 20’ separation between principal structures and 5’ pool setback to property line.
c. 10’ rear setback

The developer is requesting a PUD variance in setbacks as follows (See PUD Variance 
Case Analysis): 

a. 20’ front setback
b. 5.5’ side setback 5’ pool setback to the property line (residential lots) not to

exceed 30% of the lots (reduction in utility easements is proposed for side
property lines – 5’)

c. 10’ rear setback to open space.
8. Removal of community wastewater references.  The developer has removed the community

wastewater plant from the plans and the area is shown as future development.
9. Modifications to the current (special) use permit.  The developer proposes to delete

conditions related to subdivision access alignment and construction of the community
wastewater system.

The TRC recommendations related to the resubmitted plans include the following: 

1. The proposed street interconnection does not meet the required 400’ intersection
separation.  Since there is not precedent for further reduction, staff recommends
maintaining the intersection spacing of the approved preliminary plat (approximately
270’).  The Board will consider a text amendment on November 17, 2014 meeting that
proposes to reduce the minimum intersection separation to 125 feet for local streets.  If
approved, the proposed plans will meet the 125 foot spacing requirement.

2. The approved preliminary plat was given under the previous UDO which allowed for
patio style development (reduced lot sizes and setbacks).  The current UDO does not

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement/Amended Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 2 of 9 

112



provide for patio home development and the proposed setbacks are not consistent with 
the approved preliminary plat or transition standards of the current UDO.  The applicant 
submitted a PUD Variance request to allow for reduced side setbacks.  A PUD Variance 
was previously approved to allow on-street parking. 

3. The interconnection street shall include street trees and pavement to the property lines.  A
performance guarantee may be posted for the improvement if not installed at final plat. 

4. Street names are currently under review by GIS.

Enclosed please find a draft version of the Development Agreement that includes an amended 
sketch plan, preliminary plat and special use permit. 

Planning staff recommends approval because the proposed development agreement is consistent 
with the Moyock Small Area Plan and the subject property and sewer main extension are located 
in a Full Service area which is consistent with the Land Use Plan because it focuses sewer service in 
existing developed areas and in nearby targeted growth areas (POLICY WS3); and the 
development agreement demonstrates the impact on the future provision of public sewer capital 
improvements by the county. 

The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their August 12, 2014 meeting. 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement/Amended Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 3 of 9 

113



PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (8/12/14) 
Mr. Woody provided an overview of the development agreement. 

Mr. Cooper asked if the county would accept the sewer line that is being installed before the final 
plat is recorded. 

Mr. Woody said yes. 

Mr. Wright asked if the additional phasing of the development would require an increase in 
sewer capacity.  Does this set a precedent for the county to have to expand the sewer capacity? 

Mr. Woody said yes. 

Mr. Craddock said anticipated revenues from sewer commission fees and monthly users fees for 
sewer service will help to offset the investment the county will have to make with the expansion.  

Ms. Bell is concerned with the side setbacks. 

Mr. Cooper said tonight the board is considering the Development Agreement and not the 
changes. 

Mr. Craddock asked by removal of the conditions from the use permit, is this giving them the 
ability to create higher density by lowering these side setbacks. 

Mr. Woody said lowering the setbacks doesn’t create the ability to have a higher density.  

Mr. Bissell provided an overview of the proposal, wastewater treatment for the subdivision, 
phasing, sidewalks, and setbacks. 

Mr. Cooper asked when the agreement would expire. 

Mr. Woody said once it is adopted it is effective for 10 years. 

Mr. Bissell said everything should be platted within 4 to 5 years. 

Mr. Winslow said he has the adjacent farm, Lindsey Farm. Will there be any change in the 
already approved buffer zone between the farm and this project? 

Mr. Woody said it will remain the same. 

Mr. Winslow said the sewer line will run down the farm side of the road, is the intent to put it on 
farm property? 

Mr. Woody said the intent is to put it in DOT right-of-way. 

Mr. Winslow asked where the overflow from the lake will go. 

Mr. Bissell said it will go to Survey Road and under 168 Hwy. and out. 

Mr. Winslow asked will there be any enlargement of the existing ditch? 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement/Amended Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 4 of 9 

114



Mr. Bissell said no. 

Mr. Clark closed the public hearing. 

ACTION 
Mr. Craddock moved to approve PB 14-16 due to its consistency with the Moyock Small Area 
Plan and the 2006 Land Use Plan and the request is reasonable and in the public interest and 
does promote orderly growth and development.  Mr. Cooper seconded the motion and motion 
carried unanimously.  

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement/Amended Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 5 of 9 

115



Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement/Amended Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 6 of 9 

116



Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 

To:  Jim Myers 
Mark Bissell 

From: Planning Staff 

Date: July 11, 2014 

Subject: PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck – Development Agreement 

The following comments have been received for the July 16, 2014 TRC meeting.  Modifications of 
the request must be submitted by July 22, 2014 in order to remain on the August 12, 2014 
Planning Board agenda.  TRC comments are valid for six months from the date of the TRC 
meeting. 

Planning, Ben Woody 
Reviewed 

1. Page 5: With county approval, the developer reserves the right to may modify the final
building plans to fit market conditions. 

2. Page 32: Add - Force mains, pump stations, and accessories shall be installed in
accordance with any standards provided by the county and shall be approved by the 
Technical Review Committee.  The developer is required to submit detail drawings and 
construction drawings associated with proposed force mains, pump stations, and 
accessories.  An as built drawing/survey shall be required prior to the county’s acceptance 
of public infrastructure.  All drawings shall be prepared and certified by a registered 
engineer. 

3. Do the proposed public force main sizes adequately serve future development?  Should
modeling be required to make this determination?   A reimbursement agreement can be 
proposed for oversized facilities. 

4. Page 32: If the county agreed to release any claim to the 1.75 acre tract of land
intended for public dedication, the TRC recommends a payment in-lieu be required. 

5. Page 32: Planning staff understands that a portion of wastewater plant capacity must be
reserved at all times for economic development purposes.  This may impact reservation 
calculations as outlined in this draft agreement. 

6. Page 33: Include development summary and phasing plan (table format) on Project
Phasing and WWTP Connection exhibit. 

7. Page 34: Force mains, pump stations, and accessories located in a subdivision or along the
NCDOT right-of-way shall be dedicated to Currituck County (need to discuss fee versus 
easement at TRC meeting).  Property owners or the developer shall own and be 
responsible for infrastructure from an individual clean out or pump station to the dwelling 
unit. 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement/Amended Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 7 of 9 

117



8. Page 36: Pay for all normal costs…preparation of engineering plans, DWR permitting
State and local permitting…and installation of said 4” and 6” force mains, pump stations,
and accessories.

9. Page 36: The county must offer 22,650 GPD of WWTP capacity within two years of
what?  When will the reservation fee for phases 3 and 4 of Lake View be paid by the
developer?  How does this coincide with future reservations once Phase 2 WWTP capacity
is on-line?

10. Page 37: Planning staff recommends the use permit be formally amended with the
approval of this development agreement.

11. Page 37: need to discuss county cost obligations related to the EA at the TRC meeting.
Not sure about the county absorbing the cost for the permitting of force main extensions to
serve Lake View subdivision.

12. Page 37 – Obligation 3: see planning comment #4.
13. Is there a need to include dimensional standards or any other zoning requirements in this

development agreement?  The Lake View PUD falls under the transition standards in
Chapter 1 of the current UDO – this is a good opportunity to clarify any inconsistencies.

14. Following the TRC review, a meeting should be scheduled to begin discussing legal format
of the document, preparation responsibilities, and statutory requirements.

Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
1. I don’t understand the last paragraph of the original development narrative.  Are they

requesting capacity for 146 residences and 26 commercial connections?  What is the full 
amount of flow requested?  Shouldn’t we require the same reservation payment for the 
extra 42 single family and the 26 commercial connections? 

2. The residual payment appears to be proposed due at CO.  The remaining $429,000
should be due at final plat 

3. Remainder (75%) of sewer tap fee will be collected at final plat.
4. The 25% sewer tap reservation fee will also be required in order to reserve capacity on

Phases 3 & 4.

Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved 

Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
Approved 

Currituck County Fire Marshal, James Mims 
Approval with Corrections 

1. The Needed Fire Flow (NFF) of new construction in the commercial area cannot exceed the
available fire flow at the location. Calculations are taken from the ISO method. 

Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed 

1. *NOTE: CONSULT WITH ERIC WEATHERLY PE (COUNTY ENGINEER) 
CONCERNING MOYOCK SEWER DISTRICT HOOK UP APPROVAL FOR EACH 
LOT THAT MAKES UP THIS PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION.  

Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
1. Soil engineering is required at footing inspection.

Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement/Amended Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 8 of 9 

118



Reviewed 

Currituck County Parks and Recreation, Jason Weeks 
Reviewed 

1. Seems like a large development that isn't providing recreation opportunities to its
residents. The 1.75 acres in this location is not in my opinion ideal for a park facility; 
however it may be useful to other county departments. Is developer interested in paying 
the "fee in lieu".  

NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No comment 

1. No previously recorded archaeological sites noted within the project area.    An
archaeological survey is not recommended.  

NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens 
No comment 

US Postal Service, Moyock Postmaster 
1. Please contact the local postmaster (Moyock) to determine the mode of delivery and type

of delivery equipment. 

Lake View at Currituck 
Development Agreement/Amended Preliminary Plat/UP 

Page 9 of 9 

119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 232-3026 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT GRANTED 

On the date(s) listed below, the Board of Commissioners for the County of Currituck met and held a 
public hearing to consider the following application: 

Owner: Survey Road, LLC 
3500 Virginia Beach Blvd., Suite 528 
Virginia Beach, VA  23452 

Developer: South Moyock Development, LLC 
616 Village Drive, Suite G 
Virginia Beach, VA  23454 

Applicant: Bissell Professional Group 
PO Box 1068 
Kitty Hawk, NC  27949 

Property Location: 120 Survey Road and adjacent to Eagle Creek subdivision 

Project: PB 07-10 South Ridge, PUD – Preliminary Plat Extension  

Proposed Use: 146 Single Family Patio Home Lots, 5.46 7.21 Acres of Limited Business-Hotel 
Designation, Commercial Allocation 1.75 Acre County Dedicated Community 
Facility Site 

Meeting Dates: January 12, 2010 – Planning Board Recommendation 
February 1, 2010 – Board of Commissioners’ Public Hearing/Action 
November 5, 2012 – Board of Commissioner’s Extension 
November X, 2014 – Board of Commissioners Modification 

Having heard all the evidence and argument presented at the hearing, the Board finds that the 
application is complete, that the application complies with all of the applicable requirements of the 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance for the development proposed, and that therefore the 
application to make use of the above described property for the purpose indicated is hereby 
approved subject to all applicable provisions of the Unified Development Ordinance and the following 
conditions: 

170



(A) The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the plans 
submitted to and approved by the Board of Commissioners, a copy of which is filed in 
the office of the Planning Department. 

(B) If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof shall be held invalid or void, 
then this permit shall be void and of no effect. 

(C) This permit is valid for two years and will expire on INSERT DATE if work has not begun 
on the project at that time. Once work has begun and the use begins, this special use 
permit shall remain valid so long as the conditions under which is was granted are met. 

(D) Other conditions: 

1. The pre-construction plans shall meet and address all NCDOT traffic engineer comments and
recommended changes.

2. The right-of-way and legal instrument granted by Eagle Creek Property Owner’s Association for the
South Ridge subdivision entrance shall be resolved and recorded with the pre-construction submittal.   

3. Documentation regarding the Eagle Creek open space reduction (right-of-way dedication) shall be
provided with the pre-construction submittal. 

4. The proposed, improved access connection to the adjacent property does not extend to the
property line.  This access will not be used by a property owner until such time as the interconnection
is made; staff recommends the developer posting a bond for installation in lieu of paving the
connection to the property line.

5. The proposed wastewater treatment and disposal provides two options for South Ridge
development.  The first option includes wastewater treatment and disposal within the boundaries of 
South Ridge development.  The South Ridge utility plan shall also include any required green area, 
and must be submitted with the pre-construction submittal.  The second option includes treatment and 
disposal within the Eagle Creek development.  In order to proceed with the second option (Eagle 
Creek) the following information must be submitted with the pre-construction submittal: 
a. A summary of available capacity for the Eagle Creek system.  The summary should include all

existing demands as well as committed demands (platted lots). 
b. The basis and DWQ approval for residential flow reduction based on peak usage.
c. A detailed green area map.  Any modifications to green area must be approved by Currituck

County and NC DWQ prior to implementation.   
d. A detailed narrative of necessary improvements to the Eagle Creek wastewater treatment or

disposal areas to accommodate anticipated capacity of South Ridge (residential and 
commercial/county dedication) and financial responsibility for system upgrades. 

6. Wheelchair ramps shall be provided at intersections and other major points of pedestrian flow.
Wheelchair ramps and depressed curbs shall be constructed in accordance with NCDOT standards.
Please provide a curb cut detail with the submittal pre-construction plans.

7. On street parking, if installed, shall be provided in accordance with the variance issued by the
Board of Commissioners.

8. The pedestrian loop trail system must be located a minimum of 10 feet from all exterior property
lines and shall be located such to provide safe movement.

9. A Dominion Power encroachment agreement is required to allow roads, pedestrian trails, required
landscape buffers, and wastewater treatment infiltration pond within their 150 foot utility easement.
The agreement must be provided at the pre-construction submittal.

10. Pedestrian easements shall be provided on the final plat where the sidewalk extends beyond the
street right-of-way and on private lots.  (Development Review Manual)

11. Given the relativity small size of the proposed lots, deed restrictions or restrictive covenants shall
restrict parking of boats and recreational vehicles on individual lots or a boat/rv parking area shall
be provided.

171



12. The development impact statement references the pedestrian related active recreation element.  In
the interest of providing a complete and safe active recreation system, the applicant shall provide
sidewalks along Survey Road frontage, and between the proposed residential and nonresidential
uses.

13. The applicant shall provide the following information regarding the waste water treatment system
at pre-construction submission: 

a. A detailed explanation of who shall be responsible for the perpetual maintenance and
upkeep of the facility; 

b. State approval of the proposed system; and,
c. The expected life of the facility and the establishment of a reserve fund to support the

continued maintenance, upkeep, and replacement of the facility.   
14. The required improvements shall be installed and accepted prior to submission of final plat

approval for each phase.
15. In accordance with the UDO, the applicant shall create a sewer district for the proposed

development prior to final plat submission.   
16. The applicant shall submit a home and building design template that will be incorporated with the

approval.  Residential structures shall be designed with:
a. Variation in exterior architectural materials (siding, roofing);
b. Vertical and horizontal relief in buildings (roof lines, eaves, bump outs);
c. Variation in house styles/types;
d. Inclusion of front porches, projecting bays, vestibules; and,
e. The units shall have proportional attributes including overall height to width ratios of

existing building facades, doors, windows, projecting canopies, and other architectural
features with in the vernacular of the area.

17. In keeping with Policy WS7 of the 2006 Land Use Plan, the wastewater system shall be designed so
as to facilitate assimilation into a centralized system at a future date.   

18. All open space areas surrounding the lake shall be stabilized with grass, vegetation, and proposed
landscaping prior to recordation of the first phase.

19. All visual relief open space within each phase shall be stabilized and vegetated with grass and
proposed landscaping buffer.

20. Low impact development techniques should be integrated in the project to manage treatment of
stormwater.  (WQ3, WQ6, WQ7)

21. Internal pedestrian circulation shall be required for all commercial areas through the use of clearly
defined walkways. (CD8, CD9)

22. In commercial areas, parking located between a commercial building and street rights-of-way shall
be screened with a Type B Bufferyard. (CA3, CD7, CD8)

23. Dumpsters or similar solid waste receptacles, HVAC equipment, commercial mechanical units, or
similar appurtenances shall be screened from view using a combination of solid landscaping or
opaque fencing. (LUP CA3)

24. Landscape islands shall be incorporated into the commercial parking areas.  (LUP CD7, CD8, CA3)
25. In commercial areas pedestrian plazas or similar shaded outdoor seating areas shall be provided.

(LUP CD7, CD8, CD9)
26. Neighborhood serving commercial development shall integrate pedestrian scale and design

(proportional relationship of buildings and spaces to pedestrians).  Retail, office, and entertainment
uses shall be appropriately designed, small-scale businesses.  (LUP CD1, CD5, CD6, CD7, CD8,
CD9).

27. The maximum amount of pond aeration devices allowed by NC DWQ shall be installed.
28. A complete downstream analysis shall be included with the pre-construction submittal.
29. The driveways shall be two vehicle deep parking (including garage).
30. The slope of ponds shall be considered.
31. Cluster mailboxes shall be used.
32. The building pad elevations shall be raised a minimum of 18 inches.

172



33. A solid vegetative buffer and fencing between shall be provided to the adjacent agricultural
properties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County has caused this permit to be issued in its name, and the property 
owners/applicants of the property above described, do hereby accept this Special Use Permit together 
with all its conditions, as binding on them and their successors in interest. 

ATTEST: 

(Seal) 
 Clerk to the Board Chairman 

Board of Commissioners 

 Date 

(NOT VALID UNTIL FULLY EXECUTED) 

173



174



175



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
DATE: November 17, 2014 

PB 14-31   Lake View at Currituck, PUD 
PUD Variance Request  

ITEM:  PB 14-31 Lake View at Currituck, Planned Unit Development, variance 
request to allow 5.5’ side setbacks for no more than 30% of residential 
lots.   

LOCATION: 120 Survey Road, adjacent to Eagle Creek subdivision, Moyock Township. 

TAX ID: 0015-000-0083-0000 

ZONING 
DISTRICT: Single Family Mainland (SFM) with Planned Unit Development Overlay.  

Total PUD Area: 74.23 acres 
Commercial Designation (PUD Overlay): 7.21 acres 

PRESENT USE: Farmland 

OWNER: Survey Road, LLC 
616 Village Drive, Suite G 
Virginia Beach, VA  23454 

APPLICANT/ 
ENGINEER: Bissell Professional Group 

3512 North Croatan Highway 
PO Box 1068 
Kitty Hawk, NC  27949 

NARRATIVE: 

Bissell Professional Group is submitting a PUD variance request on behalf of Survey Road, LLC to 
allow a 5.5’ side setback for no more than 30% of the residential lots.    The ISO calculation for 
1- and 2-family dwellings not exceeding 2-stories and 4,800 square feet is as follows: 

DISTANCE BETWEEN BUILDINGS NEEDED FIRE FLOW 

More than 30 feet 500 gpm 

21-30 feet 750 gpm 

11-20 feet 1,000 gpm 

0-10 feet 1,500 gpm 

A PUD variance was issued by the BOC on July 6, 2009 to allow on-street parking. 

PB 14-31  Lake View at Currituck, PUD 
PUD Variance 

Page 1 of 3

176



QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Variance Criteria and Staff Findings: 
The PUD was approved under the previous UDO (September 4, 2007).  According to Section 
4.3.6 of the 2007 UDO, a variance from the PUD overlay requirements may be granted by the 
Board of Commissioners if it finds the proposed change: 

1. Will not endanger the public health or safety;
Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is
probably true that the use will not endanger the public health or safety.

Suggested Findings:
a. Public health and safety issues including fire protection, stormwater management,

wastewater disposal, and access for emergency services have been adequately
addressed within this request.

b. The fire marshal has found the request to be consistent with ISO standards, based on
the available fire flow to this development.

2. Will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property;
Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is
probably true that the use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property.

Suggested Finding:
a. The change will not alter the character of the PUD, which has already been found to

be non-injurious to the value of adjoining or abutting property.

3. Will be in harmony with the area in which it is located;
Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is
probably true that the use will be in harmony with the area in which it is located.

Suggested Finding:
a. The proposed project is still in keeping with the character of the surrounding area.

4. Will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan, Thoroughfare Plan, or other plan officially
adopted by the Board; and,
Based on the suggested findings, staff has determined it is probably true that the use will
be in conformity with the Land Use Plan, Thoroughfare Plan, or other plan officially
adopted by the Board.

Suggested Findings:
a. The Moyock Small Area Plan classifies this site as Full Service.  Full Service Areas are

defined as areas that “will have high concentrations of public investment and medium
to higher development intensities…. Clustered or planned commercial and residential
areas with diversity in housing types is preferred.  Typical densities in full service
designations range from 1.5 – 3 units per acre depending on surrounding land uses.

b. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Rural within the Moyock subarea.  The
Rural classification does not necessarily support the PUD overlay.  In areas where
central sewer is proposed or existing, additional services are available, and the

PB 14-31  Lake View at Currituck, PUD 
PUD Variance 

Page 2 of 3

177



surrounding areas support it, higher density ranging from 3-4 units per acre could be 
considered through the use of overlay zones.  The proposed use is in keeping with the 
policies of the plan, some of which are: 

Policy HN3:  Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of residential 
development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban sprawl: 
1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, preserving

permanently dedicated open space and often employ on-site or community 
sewage treatment.  These types of developments are likely to occur primarily in 
the Conservation, Rural, and to a certain extent the Limited Services areas 
identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR A MIXTURE OF
USES that promote a return to balanced, self-supporting community centers 
generally served by centralized water and sewer.  The types of development are 
contemplated for the Full Service Areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.   

Policy CD2:  Commercial and office development of greater than a neighborhood 
scale shall be encouraged to cluster in COMMERCIAL OR MIXED-USE CENTERS to 
curtail the proliferation of strip development, and minimize traffic generation. 

Policy CD8:  MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENTS, properly planned from the outside, which 
allow for a compatible mixture of residential and non-residential uses with a 
pedestrian scale and design, are encouraged.  Similarly, businesses may be located 
adjoining (and therefore convenient to) an existing residential area, when such 
businesses can be shown to satisfy design considerations similar to a newly planned, 
pedestrian-scaled, mixed use development.   

5. Will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, but not
limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  Applicable
state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public facilities are
adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be in place within 2 years after
the initial approval of the sketch plan.
Based on the suggested findings provided by the applicant, staff has determined it is
probably true that the use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public
facilities.

Suggested Finding:
a. The county has adequate public facilities to service this subdivision.
b. The development demand for schools is included in the adequate public facilities

ordinance.

In granting variance the Board of Commissioners may attach additional conditions or 
requirements that will, in its judgment, secure the objective of the standards or requirements so 
varied or modified (such as ISO ratings). 

PB 14-31  Lake View at Currituck, PUD 
PUD Variance 

Page 3 of 3

178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Approval of Minutes 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Approval of minutes for Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, November 3, 2014. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Leeann Walton, Clerk to the Board 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Consent Agenda 

195



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 

November 3, 2014 
Minutes 
Meeting of the Board of Commissioners 

The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 PM for a regularly scheduled meeting in the Board Meeting 
Room of the Historic Courthouse with the following members present:  Board Chairman Paul O’Neal, 
Vice-Chairman Paul Martin and Commissioners Marion Gilbert, Vance Aydlett, Butch Petrey, Paul 
Beaumont, and David Griggs.  Staff included County Manager Dan Scanlon, County Attorney Ike 
McRee and Planning Director Ben Woody.  

Chairman O’Neal called the meeting to order at 7 PM and announced an earlier Work Session to 
discuss construction options for the Historic Jarvisburg Colored School (HJCS) restroom facilities.  
Vice-Chairman Paul Martin was not able to attend the Work Session.  County Engineer Eric Weatherly 
was present, while Michelle Perry of the Engineering Department presented the options for the 
restrooms, showing slides with the layouts and related costs.  Many members of the Board of Directors 
of the HJCS and supporters of the project were in attendance.  At close of the presentation, and after 
some discussion, the Board directed the item be placed on the first December meeting Agenda for a 
vote, as well as repeat the Work Session on the same date.   

A) Invocation
B) Pledge of Allegiance

Reverend Susan Fitch-Slater of Sharon United Methodist Church gave the invocation and led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

C) Approval of Agenda

Chairman O’Neal amended the Agenda to remove Budget Amendment number 2015029 for the 
transfer of funds for the Southern Outer Banks Water Plant Expansion from the Consent Agenda.  
Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

Approved Agenda 

REVISED  

Work Session 

6 PM Historic Jarvisburg Colored School Facilities Presentation 

196



7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation-Reverend Susan Fitch-Slater, Sharon United Methodist Church
B) Pledge of Allegiance-Reverend Susan Fitch-Slater, Sharon United Methodist Church
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please limit
comments to 3 minutes.

Administrative Reports 

A) Senior Tarheel Legislative Update-Joanne Dibello
B) Tourism Department Awards Recognition

Public Hearings 

A) PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck: Request for a development agreement between Currituck County
and Survey Road, LLC for property located in Moyock on Survey Road west of the intersection with
Caratoke Highway, Tax 15, Parcel 83, Moyock Township.

New Business 

A) Board Appointments:
1. Whalehead Preservation Trust

B) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of Minutes for October 20, 2014
2. Budget Amendments-Budget amendment #2015029 for Southern Outer Banks Water

System RO Plant Expansion was removed.
3. CDBG Monthly Status Report
4. Building Permit Fee Schedule-Solar Array
5. Recommendation of Award, SOBWS Reverse Osmosis Well
6. Dominion Right-of-Way Agreement for Parks & Rec Maintenance Building

C) Commissioner’s Report
D) County Manager’s Report

Adjourn 

D) Public Comment

Chairman O’Neal opened the public comment period. 

Commissioner Gilbert acknowledged the retirement of Harvey Roberts, a Crawford volunteer firefighter, 
who was honored with a banquet last week.  Mr.  Roberts had forty years of service with the fire 
department.  Chairman O’Neal asked and encouraged young people to volunteer.  

197



With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman O’Neal closed the Public Comment period. 

Ad ministrative Reports 

A) Senior Tarheel Legislative Update-Joanne Dibello

Joanne Dibello, Senior Tarheel Legislative Committee delegate, said she attended the meeting held in 
Raleigh on October 9 and 10.  The purpose of the meeting is for each delegate to put forth the five 
most important legislative issues for seniors.  She spoke of all of the programs and services our Senior 
Centers provide to our senior citizens and said the Director, Stacy Joseph, does a great job.  Ms.  
Dibello said she was very disappointed to hear of state budget cuts for senior programs, and this was 
the issue of most importance that was submitted to the state legislators. 

B) Tourism Department Awards Recognition

Tameron Kugler, Director of Travel & Tourism, announced the department had won two awards at the 
Destination Marketing Association of North Carolina’s annual awards banquet.  She acknowledged 
employee Dan Clowdsley for his outstanding effort in creating the winning materials.  Ms.  Kugler 
related tourism related Economic Impact statistics and explained the benefits tourism has on citizens of 
Currituck.  She encouraged businesses to take advantage of their co-op advertising program, and 
invited residents to visit the Welcome Centers.  She relayed to the Board that shoulder season 
occupancy tax collections increased this year in both September and October. 

Public Hearings 

A) PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck: Request for a development agreement between
Currituck County and Survey Road, LLC for property located in Moyock on Survey Road
west of the intersection with Caratoke Highway, Tax 15, Parcel 83, Moyock Township.

Ben Woody, Planning Director, presented and reviewed the request for the development agreement.  
Mr.  Woody stated this concept was new to the County, and that he will ask for the Board to vote on 
the request at the next Board of Commissioners’ meeting.  He reviewed the purpose and intent of 
development agreements and recounted the zoning history and timeline of the property.  Mr.  Woody 
explained this agreement deals with developer installing sewer lines in return for vesting in the 
wastewater system.  Mr.  Woody said the Planning Board recommends approval. 

To:    Board of Commissioners 

From:   Planning Staff 

Date:   October 27, 2014 

Subject:   PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck – Development Agreement 
James O. Myers submitted an application for a Development Agreement between Survey Road, LLC 
(the “Developer”) and Currituck County for the proposed Lake View at Currituck subdivision located 
at 120 Survey Road in the Moyock Township. The use of a development agreement is authorized in 
North Carolina General Statutes 153A-379.1– 153A-379.13 and Section 2.4.18 of the Currituck 

198



County Unified Development Ordinance (UDO); the purpose and intent of a development agreement is 
to: 

1. Encourage comprehensive planning and capital facilities planning;
2. Ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development;
3. Encourage the efficient use of resources, while providing certainty in the process of

obtaining development permits and approvals; and
4. Reduce the economic costs of development by providing greater regulatory certainty.

The Development Agreement proposed between the Developer and Currituck County requires that 
the Developer install a new oversized public sewer force main to connect the Lake View at Currituck 
subdivision to the Moyock Central Sewer System. The sewer mains, pump stations, and appurtenances 
subject to the development agreement will be dedicated to the county upon completion and 
acceptance by the Technical Review Committee. Through approval of the development 
agreement the county will reserve capacity in in the Moyock Central Sewer System for the build out of 
the Lake View at Currituck subdivision and will consider the cost of installation of the sewer force main 
as a cost of development for the purpose of establishing zoning vested rights. Detailed obligations of 
the Developer and county are included in the Conditions section of the Development Agreement. 

The Developer is also submitting an amended sketch plan and preliminary plat for approval, as well 
as requesting modifications to the current (special) use permit. The significant changes include: 

1. Removal of road connection through Eagle Creek open space. The third entrance road across
Eagle Creek open space is proposed for removal. The entrance roads in the subdivision
were reviewed by a traffic engineer and NCDOT and the revised plans reflect the
recommendations.

2. Reduction in sidewalks and widths.  The applicant is requesting removal of sidewalks from one
side of the street and footbridge over the lake.  The resubmitted plans now include sidewalks
along one side of the street interconnected in open space and neighborhood commercial
areas.

3. Removal of county dedication, increase in commercial area, and decrease in open space.  The
1.75 acre tract previously dedicated to the county on the preliminary plat is proposed to
revert to the developer, allocated for commercial, and removed from open space in
exchange for installing a 6 inch sewer force main off-site of the development. (See
Development Agreement)

4. Reduction in street intersection spacing. The approved preliminary plat provides intersection
spacing of approximately 270 feet for the interconnection street (Chip’s Road). The
revised plans reduce that spacing to approximately 170’ which is below the approved spacing
(270’ approximate) and the current UDO requirement (400’).

5. Revised phasing plan.
6. Removed specific playground equipment summary for pocket parks.
7. Reduction in structure setbacks/drainage easements. The approved preliminary plan allows

setbacks to be as follows:
a. 20’ setback to NCDOT 50’ right of way and 22’ setback to back of curb.
b. 20’ separation between principal structures and 5’ pool setback to property line.
c. 10’ rear setback

199



The developer is requesting a modification in setbacks as follows: 
a. 20’ front setback
b. 5.5’ side setback 5’ pool setback to the property line
c. 10’ rear setback to open space.

8. Removal of community wastewater references. The developer has removed the community
wastewater plant from the plans and the area is shown as future development.

9. Modifications to the current (special) use  permit. The developer proposes to delete
conditions related to  subdivision access alignment  and construction of the  community
wastewater system.

The TRC recommendations related to the resubmitted plans include the following: 

1. The proposed interconnection street does not meet the required 400’ intersection spacing.
Since there is not precedent for further reduction, Staff recommends maintaining the
intersection spacing of the approved preliminary plat (approximately 270’). The Board will
consider a text amendment on November 17, 2014 that proposes to reduce the minimum
intersection spacing to 125 feet for local streets. If approved, the proposed plans will meet
the 125 foot spacing requirement.

2. The approved preliminary plat was given under the previous UDO which allowed for
patio style development (reduced lot sizes and setbacks). The current UDO does not
provide for patio home development and the proposed setbacks are not consistent with the
approved preliminary plat or transition standards of the current UDO. The applicant plans to
request a PUD Variance to allow for reduced side setbacks. A PUD Variance was previously
approved to allow on-street parking.

3. The interconnection street shall include street trees and pavement to the property lines. A
performance guarantee may be posted for the improvement if not installed at final plat.

4. Street names are currently under review by GIS.

Enclosed please find a draft version of the Development Agreement that includes an amended 
sketch plan, preliminary plat and special use permit. 

Planning staff recommends approval because the proposed development agreement is consistent with 
the Moyock Small Area Plan because the subject property and sewer main extension are located 
in a Full Service area; is consistent with the Land Use Plan because it focuses sewer service in 
existing developed areas and in nearby targeted growth areas (POLICY WS3); and the 
development agreement demonstrates the impact on the future provision of public sewer capital 
improvements by the county. 

The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their August 12, 2014 meeting. 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (8/12/14) 
Mr. Woody provided an overview of the development agreement. 

Mr. Cooper asked if the county would accept the sewer line that is being installed before the final plat 
is recorded. 

Mr. Woody said yes. 

200



Mr. Wright asked if the additional phasing of the development would require an increase in sewer 
capacity. Does this set a precedent for the county to have to expand the sewer capacity? 

Mr. Woody said yes. 

Mr. Craddock said anticipated revenues from sewer commission fees and monthly users fees for sewer 
service will help to offset the investment the county will have to make with the expansion. 

Ms. Bell is concerned with the side setbacks. 

Mr. Cooper said tonight the board is considering the Development Agreement and not the 
changes. 

Mr. Craddock asked by removal of the conditions from the use permit, is this giving them the 
ability to create higher density by lowering these side setbacks. 

Mr. Woody said lowering the setbacks doesn’t create the ability to have a higher density. 

Mr. Bissell provided an overview of the proposal, wastewater treatment for the subdivision, 
phasing, sidewalks, and setbacks. 

Mr. Cooper asked when the agreement would expire. 

Mr. Woody said once it is adopted it is effective for 10 years. Mr. 

Bissell said everything should be platted within 4 to 5 years. 

Mr. Winslow said he has the adjacent farm, Lindsey Farm. Will there be any change in the 
already approved buffer zone between the farm and this project? 

Mr. Woody said it will remain the same. 

Mr. Winslow said the sewer line will run down the farm side of the road, is the intent to put it on farm 
property? 

Mr. Woody said the intent is to put it in DOT right-of-way. Mr. 

Winslow asked where the overflow from the lake will go. 

Mr. Bissell said it will go to Survey Road and under 168 Hwy. and out. Mr. 

Winslow asked will there be any enlargement of the existing ditch? 

Mr. Bissell said no. 
Mr. Clark closed the public hearing. 

ACTION 

Mr. Craddock moved to approve PB 14-16 due to its consistency with the Moyock Small Area Plan 
and the 2006 Land Use Plan and the request is reasonable and in the public interest and does 

201



promote orderly growth and development. Mr. Cooper seconded the motion and motion carried 
unanimously. 

After completion of the presentation, Commissioner Petrey inquired if the flooding issues have 
changed since original approval in 2006.  Mr.  Woody said they will now fall under the 2010 Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO), which is more stringent in addressing stormwater issues.  
Commissioner Petrey said he wants to be sure we won’t be creating an even bigger stormwater 
problem.  There was some discussion regarding vesting, which would run out December 1, after 
which Mr.  Woody reviewed the phase and development schedule. 

John Morrison of Twiford Law Firm, Moyock, introduced the parties involved and explained the 
Development Agreement and its potential benefit to both parties.  Mr.  Morrison said the agreement 
brings certainty for the County while allowing vesting rights for the developer.  The agreement would 
keep rules from changing in the middle of the game which he feels is needed due to the long-term 
commitment of both parties.  Mr.  Morrison reviewed the sub-division plan, amenities, and the time-
line stated in the agreement.  He reviewed the development agreement guarantees prescribed for 
both parties.  Chairman O’Neal asked about vesting by work performed or money spent.  Mr.  Woody 
said the old UDO was 5% of the project in spending.  Now, he said, vesting includes submittal of a 
final plat. 

Commissioner Petrey inquired about minimum lot size under the old UDO and what the minimum is 
for Lakeview sub-division.  Mr.  Woody answered that the minimum size under the old UDO was 
7,500 square feet, with some exceptions for patio homes.  This subdivision, on average, would have 
lots of 10,000 square feet. 

Mark Bissell of Kitty Hawk, clarified the vesting with the Board, stating that the developer prefers to 
hook up to the wastewater system, but they do have a backup plan to spend the 5% required for 
vesting should the Development Agreement be denied.  

Chairman O’Neal inquired about the types of businesses they hoped to attract.  Mr.  Bissell answered 
they want to include businesses that would serve the community, such as a small market, day care  
or a dry cleaner. 

Vice-chairman Martin asked about estimated costs for installation of the force main.  Although Mr.  
Bissell did not have a cost, he said the value would be about $88,000, a good return for the County. 

Commissioner Aydlett discussed revisited stormwater concerns.  Mr.  Bissell said they exceeded the 
requirements under the old UDO.  They also oversized the lake to accommodate additional runoff.  
Eric Weatherly, County Engineer, said they would meet the requirements of the County ordinance.  
Mr.  Woody said staff could do a comparison but Commissioner Aydlett said the vesting was going to 
happen regardless, whether under the old or new based on the comment that they have a backup 
plan to spend the 5% if the agreement is not approved.  Commissioner Martin asked if the County 
had plans to extend lines over the next few years, to which Mr.  Scanlon answered we did not.  

After review and discussion, Chairman O’Neal recessed PB 14-16 to be continued at the next regular 
meeting. 

202



New Business 

A) Board Appointments:

1. Whalehead Preservation Trust

The following appointments were approved unanimously by the Board of Commissioners:   
Commissioner Griggs appointed Dan Scanlon and Commissioner Martin appointed Ike McRee, 
to the Whalehead Preservation Trust. 

B) Consent Agenda:

1. Approval of Minutes for October 20, 2014
2. Budget Amendments-Budget amendment #2015029 for Southern Outer Banks

Water System RO Plant Expansion was removed.
3. CDBG Monthly Status Report
4. Building Permit Fee Schedule-Solar Array
5. Recommendation of Award, SOBWS Reverse Osmosis Well
6. Dominion Right-of-Way Agreement for Parks & Rec Maintenance Building

Commissioner Martin moved for approval of the Consent Agenda, seconded by Commissioner Gilbert. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

60808-590001 Capital Outlay  $            15,000 
60808-516001 Repair & Maintenance  $          10,000 
60808-561001 Professional Services  $            5,000 

 $            15,000  $          15,000 

       Explanation: Ocean Sands (60808-) - Transfer funds within the Ocean Sands budget to replace 
groundwater lowering pumps at Ocean Sands WWTP. 

 Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

203



Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

10450-545000 CONTRACTED SERVICES  $       1,700 
10450-532000 SUPPLIES  $            1,700 

 $       1,700  $            1,700 

       Explanation: Tax (10450) - Transfer funds for upgrade to online services in order to properly 
display maps. 

 Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

10790-590000 Capital Outlay  $       2,576 
10790-532000 Supplies  $            2,576 

 $       2,576  $            2,576 

       Explanation: Library (10790) - Transfer funds to purchase tables for the Barco library 

 Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

204



C) Commissioner’s Report

Commissioner Beaumont encouraged everyone to attend the horse show to be held Saturday, 
November 8, at the Rural Center.   

Commissioner Martin encouraged folks to visit the Rural Center, stating it is a beautiful area.  He also 
announced the dedication of the new soccer fields at Maple to be held Saturday, November 8, at 9:30 
AM.   

Commissioner Aydlett reminded folks to be sure to get out and exercise their right to vote on Tuesday.  
He asked those who placed large post signs on a particular property in Knott’s Island to be sure to fill in 
the holes upon removal of the campaign signs. 

Commissioner Petrey requested information for calculating the need for schools to be included in the 
next meeting agenda.  He believes the County growth will require a new school. 

Chairman O’Neal announced that the North Carolina Department of Transportation will be hosting a 
meeting and presentation in Currituck County on December 15, 2014, to discuss traffic concerns. 

D) County Manager’s Report  -

No Report. 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, Commissioner Martin moved to adjourn, with a second by 
Commissioner Gilbert.  The motion carried unanimously and the meeting was adjourned. 

205



Number 2015031

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50442-596100 Professional Services 200,000$   
50442-590002 Connecting Corolla Bike Path 200,000$   

200,000$   200,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Connecting Corolla (50442) - Transfer funds from Professional Services to the Connecting Corolla Bike 
Path line to consolidate the project.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - No change.

206



Number 2015032

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10480-545200 Records Management 14,000$   
10480-521000 Equipment Rental 10,000$   
10480-532000 Supplies 1,100$   
10480-590000 Capital Outlay 2,900$   

14,000$   14,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Register of Deeds (10480) - Transfer budgeted funds to restore deteriorating deed books.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

207



Number 2015033

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

56868-590005 Carolina Water Wells 229,991$   
56868-590001 .75 MGD Conventional System 45,285$   
56868-590004 Piping/Distribution System 137,625$   
56868-588000 Contingency 47,081$   

229,991$   229,991$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

SOBWS Plant Expansion (56868) - Transfer funds to complete the Carolina Water Deep Wells for the 
SOBWS Reverse Osmosis Plant Expansion.

Net Budget Effect: SOBWS Construction Fund (56) - No change.

208



Number 2015034

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50512-594500 Contract Services 94,500$   
50512-596100 Professional Services 27,802$   
50512-588000 Contingency 122,302$   

122,302$   122,302$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Animal Shelter (50512) - Transfer contingency funds within the Animal Shelter project for design/build 
contract.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - No change.

209



Number 2015035

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10530-540000 Worker's Compensation 3,443$   
10530-502000 Salaries - Regular 3,443$   
10510-540000 Worker's Compensation 3,401$   
10795-540000 Worker's Compensation 2,719$   
10540-540000 Worker's Compensation 1,611$   
10540-502000 Salaries - Regular 1,611$   
10340-456001 Zoning Violation Fees 3,541$   
10340-456510 Sheriff Fees 2,579$   

61818-540000 Worker's Compensation 1,073$   
61360-471000 Tap & Connection Fees 1,073$   

66868-540000 Worker's Compensation 3,217$   
66360-470000 Utility Charges 3,217$   

15,464$   15,464$   

Explanation:

Mainland Water (61) - Increased by $1,073.
Southern Outer Banks Water (66) - Increased by $3,217.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Various Departments - Transfer and increase funds for the FY 2014 Worker's Compensation Audit to 
actual.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $6,120.

210



Number 2015036

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10760-561000 Professional Services 2,500$   
10760-561000 Professional Services Nonreimburasable 6,000$   
10390-499900 Fund Appropriate Balance 8,500$   

8,500$   8,500$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $8,500.

SOCIAL SERVICES ADMIN (750) -  Currituck County's portion of the 1571 Software Uplift project.  
COUNTY ASSISTANCE (760) - Additional funds for forensic exams, and testimony costs for court.  
This cost is determined by the need of clients receiving services through Child Protective Services.

211



Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda Item Title

CDBG Language Access Plan 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Update Community Development Block Grant Language Access Plan as required for grant compliance. 

Board Action Requested

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Tammy Glave 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Ben Woody 

212



Language Access Plan 

Currituck County, North Carolina 
Fiscal Year 2011 Community Development Program 

The purpose of this Policy and Plan is to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and other applicable federal and state laws and their implementing 
regulations with respect to persons with limited English proficiency (LEP).  Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based on the ground of race, color 
or national origin by any entity receiving federal financial assistance.  Administrative 
methods or procedures, which have the effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination 
or defeating the objectives of these regulations, are prohibited. 

In order to avoid discrimination on the grounds of national origin, all programs or 
activities administered by the County must take adequate steps to ensure that their 
policies and procedures do not deny or have the effect of denying LEP individuals with 
equal access to benefits and services for which such persons qualify.  This Policy defines 
the responsibilities the agency has to ensure LEP individuals can communicate 
effectively. 

I. Scope of Policy 

These requirements will apply to all partially or wholly federally-funded activities 
undertaken by the County of Currituck (herein referred to as “the agency”) including 
subcontractors, vendors, and subrecipients. 

The agency will ensure that LEP individuals are provided meaningful access to benefits 
and services provided through contractors or service providers receiving subgrants from 
the agency. 

II. Definitions

A. DOJ:  North Carolina Department of Justice 
B. Limited English Proficient (LEP) individual – Any prospective, potential, or 

actual recipient of benefits or services from the agency who cannot speak, read, 
write or understand the English language at a level that permits them to interact 
effectively with health care providers and social service agencies. 

C. Vital Documents – These forms include, but are not limited to, applications, 
consent forms, all compliance plans, bid documents (within reasonable notice), 
fair housing information, citizen participation plans, letters containing important 
information regarding participation in a program; notices pertaining to the 
reduction, denial, or termination of services or benefits, including the right to 
appeal such actions, or that require a response from beneficiary notices advising 
LEP persons of the availability of free language assistance, LEP outreach 
materials, and other documents determined by the agency to be vital documents.   

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

1 

213



D. Title VI Compliance Officer:  The person or persons responsible for compliance 
with the Title VI LEP policies.   

E. Substantial number of LEP:  5% or 1,000 people, whichever is smaller, are 
potential applicants or recipients of the agency and speak a primary language 
other than English and have limited English proficiency.   

III. Providing Notice to LEP Individuals

A. The agency will take appropriate steps to inform all applicants, recipients, 
community organizations, and other interested persons, including those whose 
primary language is other than English, of the provisions of this policy.  Such 
notification will also identify the name, office telephone number, and office 
address of the Title VI compliance officer(s).   

List the current name, office telephone number and office address of the 
Title VI compliance officers: 

Ben Woody, Sandra Hill 
Planning and Community Finance Director 
Development Director 153 Courthouse Road 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 Currituck, NC  27929 
Currituck, NC   27929 (252) 232-2075 
(252) 232-3055 

 [Note:  The agency must notify the interested State/Federal Agencies 
compliance office immediately of changes in name or contact information for 
the Title VI compliance officer.] 

The agency will post and maintain signs in regularly encountered languages other 
than English in waiting rooms, reception areas and other initial points of contact.  
These signs will inform applicants and beneficiaries of their right to free language 
assistance services and invite them to identify themselves as persons needing such 
services. 

Identify areas within the agency where these signs will be posted:  

These signs will be posted in the Planning Division, Building Inspections 
Division and the Administration Office all of which are highly visible to the 
public.  

B. The agency will include statements of the right to free language assistance in 
Spanish and other significant languages in all outreach material that is routinely 
disseminated to the public (including electronic text).   

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

2 

214



C. The agency will also disseminate information in the following manner:   

Currituck County will use posters and pamphlets to disseminate information about 
the rights listed in this policy.  

IV. Provision of Services to LEP Applicants/Recipients

A. Assessing Linguistic Needs of Potential Applicants and Recipients 

1. The agency will assess the language needs of the population to be served,
by identifying:

a. the language needs of each LEP applicant/recipient
b. the points of contact where language assistance is needed; and
c. the resources needed to provide effective language assistance,

including location, availability and arrangements necessary for
timely use.

2. Determining the Language Needs of the Population to be Served

The agency is responsible for assessing the needs of the population to be
served.  Such assessment will include, but not be limited to the following:

a. The non-English languages that are likely to be encountered in its
program will be identified.

b. An estimate of the number of people in the community for whom
English is not the primary language used for communication will
be completed and updated annually.  To identify the languages and
number of LEP individuals local entities should review:

i. census data
ii. school system data
iii. reports from federal, state, and local governments
iv. community agencies’ information, and
v. data from client files

c. The points of contact in the program or activity where language
assistance is likely to be needed will be identified.

3. Determining the Language Needs of Each Applicant/Recipient

The agency will determine the language needs of each applicant/recipient.
Such assessment will include, but not be limited to the following:

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

3 

215



a. At the first point of contact, each applicant/recipient will be
assessed to determine the individual’s primary language.

Check all methods that will be used:

multi-language identification cards, a poster-size language 
list, or the use of “I speak” peel-off language identification 
cards for indicating preferred languages 

English proficiency assessment tools, provided they can be 
administered in a manner that is sensitive to and respectful 
of individual dignity and privacy 

b. If the LEP person does not speak or read any of these languages,
the agency will use a telephone interpreting service to identify the
client’s primary language.

c. Staff will not solely rely on their own assessment of the applicant
or recipient’s English proficiency in determining the need for an
interpreter.  If an individual requests an interpreter, an interpreter
will be provided free of charge.  A declaration of the client will be
used to establish the client’s primary language.

d. When staff place or receive a telephone call and cannot determine
what language the other person on the line is speaking, a telephone
interpreting service will be utilized in making the determination.

e. If any applicant/recipient is assessed as LEP, they will be informed
of free language interpretative services.  When there is a direct
(face-to-face) contact with a person assessed as LEP and whose
primary language is one of the ones identified in Section IV.C.
below, a written notice of the availability of free language
interpretative services will be provided.

B. Provision of Bilingual/Interpretive Services 

1. The agency will ensure that effective bilingual/interpretive services are
provided to serve the needs of the non-English speaking population.  The
provision of bilingual/interpretive services will be prompt without undue
delays.  In most circumstances, this requires language services to be
available during all operating hours.

This requirement will be met by: The agency will use bilingual staff when
possible and the services of Fluent Language Solutions when necessary.

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

4 

216



2. The agency will provide language assistance at all level of interaction with
LEP individuals, including telephone interactions.

This requirement will be met by: The agency will use bilingual staff when
possible and the services of Fluent Language Solutions when necessary.

3. Interpreter Standards

a. Those providing bilingual/interpretive services will meet the
linguistic and cultural competency standards set forth below.  The
agency will ensure that interpreters and self-identified bilingual
staff, have first been screened to ensure that the following
standards are met before being used for interpreter services:

i. Can fluently and effectively communicate in both English
and the primary language of the LEP individual

ii. Can accurately and impartially interpret to and from such
languages and English

iii. Has a basic knowledge of specialized terms and concepts
used frequently in the provision of the agency’s services

iv. Demonstrates cultural competency
v. Understands the obligation to maintain confidentiality
vi. Understands the roles of interpreters and the ethics

associated with being an interpreter

Describe how the agency ensures the competency of bilingual staff 
and interpreters:   

The agency will ensure the competency of bilingual staff and 
interpreters through personal interviews that address certain 
identified standards.  Statements will be signed indicating an 
understanding of the roles of the interpreter and of the need for 
confidentiality. 

b. When staff members have reason to believe that an interpreter is
not qualified or properly trained to serve as an interpreter, the staff
member will request another interpreter.

3. Using Family Members or Friends as Interpreters

a. Applicants/recipients may provide their own interpreter; however
the agency will not require them to do so.

b. The agency will first inform an LEP person, in the primary
language of the LEP person, of the right to free interpreter services
and the potential problems for ineffective communication.  If the

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

5 

217



LEP person declines such services and requests the use of a family 
member or friend, the agency may utilize the family member or 
friend to interpret only if the use of such person would not 
compromise the effectiveness or services or violate the LEP 
person’s confidentiality.  The agency will monitor these 
interactions and again offer interpreter services, if it appears there 
are problems with this arrangement. 

c. The agency will indicate in the LEP individual’s file that an offer
of interpreter services was made and rejected; that the individual
was informed of potential problems associated with using friends
or family members and the name of the person serving as an
interpreter at the LEP individual’s request.

d. Only under extenuating circumstances shall the agency allow a
minor (under the age of 18 years) to temporarily act as an
interpreter.  The agency will keep a written record of when it has
used a minor as an interpreter, and this information will be shared
with the State/Federal Agencies upon request.

4. The agency will not require the applicant/recipient to pay for
bilingual/interpretive services.

C. Provision of Written Translations 

1. The agency must provide written materials in languages other than English
where a substantial number or percentage of the population eligible to be
served or likely to be directly affected by the program needs services or
information in a language other than English to communicate effectively.

2. Translation of Vital Documents

a. The agency will ensure that vital documents for locally designed
programs are translated at minimum into Spanish.

b. When interested State/Federal Agencies’ forms and other written
material contain spaces in which the local entity is to insert
information, this inserted information will also be in the
individual’s primary language.  When such forms are completed by
applicants/recipients in their primary language, the information
must be accepted.

c. If, as a result of the local language assessment, it appears there are
a substantial number of potential applicants or recipients of the
agency (defined as 5% or 1,000 people whichever is less) who are
LEP and speak a language other than Spanish, the agency will

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

6 

218



translate and provide vital documents in the appropriate language.  

d. The agency will keep a record of all vital documents translated,
and will submit this information to the interested State/Federal
Agencies at their request.

3. If the primary language of an LEP applicant or recipient is a language
other than Spanish and the language does not meet the threshold for
translation as defined in the preceding paragraph, the LEP individual will
be informed in their own language of the right to oral translation of written
notices.  The notification will include, in the primary language of the
applicant/recipient, the following language:

IMPORTANT:  IF YOU NEED HELP IN READING THIS, ASK THE
AGENCY FOR AN INTERPRETER TO HELP.  AN INTERPRETER IS
AVAILABLE FREE OF CHARGE.

D. Documentation of Applicant/Recipient Case Records 

1. The agency will maintain case record documentation in sufficient detail to
permit a reviewer to determine the agency’s compliance with this policy.

2. The agency will ensure that case record documentation, including
computerized records if appropriate, identifies the applicants/recipient’s
ethnic origin and primary language.  In those cases where the
applicant/recipient is non-English speaking, the agency will:

a. Document the individual’s acceptance or refusal of forms or other
written materials offered in the individual’s primary language.

b. Document the method used to provide bilingual services, e.g.,
assigned worker is bilingual, other bilingual employee acted as
interpreter, volunteer interpreter was used, or client provided
interpreter.  When a minor is used as interpreter, the agency will
document the circumstances requiring temporary use of a minor
and will provide this information to interested State/Federal
Agencies upon request.

3. Consent for the release of information will be obtained from
applicants/recipients when individuals other than agency employees are
used as interpreters and the case record will be so documented.

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

7 

219



E. Staff Development and Training 

1. The agency will provide staff training at new employee orientation and
continuing training programs.  The training will include, but not be limited
to:

a. Language assistance policies and procedures, resources available to
support such procedures, methods of effective use of interpreters, and
familiarization with the discrimination complaint process.

b. Cultural awareness information, including specific cultural
characteristics of the groups served by the agency to provide a better
understanding of, and sensitivity to, the various cultural groups to
ensure equal delivery of services.

2. The agency will provide or ensure training is provided for bilingual staff
and interpreters employed or utilized by the agency.  This includes the
ethics of interpreting, including confidentiality; methods of interpreting;
orientation to the organization; specialized terminology used by the
agency; and cultural competency.

3. The agency will ensure that applicable grantees, contractors, cooperative
agreement recipients and other entities receiving state or federal dollars
are trained in the requirements of this policy.

Currituck County Planning and Community Development and Finance
staff, including bilingual staff used as interpreters, will be trained annually
on this written policy of strategies for Limited English Proficiency.
Language assistance policies and procedures, as well as cultural awareness
information, will also be included in new worker orientation for affected
programs.  Currituck County will provide compliance information in all
contracts, cooperative agreements and subgrantee agreements for
interested State/Federal Agencies’ programs.

4. The agency will collect and maintain the following information about
training provided to staff:  the date(s) of such training, the content of such
training, the number and types of credit hours awarded; and the names and
identifying information of each attendee at the training.  The agency will
ensure that grantees, contractors, cooperative agreement recipients and
other applicable funded entities collect and maintain such information as
well.

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

8 

220



V. Compliance Procedures, Reporting and Monitoring 

A. Reporting 

1. The agency will complete an annual compliance report and send this
report to interested State/Federal Agencies.

B. Monitoring 

1. The agency will complete a self-monitoring report on a quarterly basis,
using a standardized reporting system providing by the interested
State/Federal Agencies. These reports will be maintained and stored by the
Title VI compliance officer and will be provided to the interested
State/Federal Agencies upon request.

2. The agency will cooperate, when requested, with special review by the
interested State/Federal Agencies.

VI. Applicant/Recipient Complaints of Discriminatory Treatment

A. Complaints

1. The agency will provide assistance to LEP individuals who do not speak
or write in English if they indicate that they would like to file a complaint.
A complaint will be filed in writing, contain the name and address of the
person filing it or his/her designee and briefly describe the alleged
violation of this policy.

2. The agency will maintain records of any complaints filed, the date of
filing, actions taken and resolution.

3. The agency will notify the appropriate agency or Division within
interested State/Federal Agencies of complaints filed the date of filing,
actions taken and resolution. This information will be provided within 30
days of resolution.

B. Investigation 

1. The interested State/Federal Agencies’ Compliance Office will conduct an
investigation of the allegations of the complaint.  The investigation will
afford all interested persons and their representatives, if any, an
opportunity to submit evidence relevant to the complaint.

2. The investigation will not exceed 30 days, absent a 15-day extension for
extenuating circumstances.

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

9 

221



 
C. Resolution of Matters 

 
1. If the investigation indicates a failure to comply with the Act, the local 

unit of government, agency Director or his/her designee will so inform the 
recipient and the matter will be resolved by informal means whenever 
possible within 60 days. 

 
2. If the matter cannot be resolved by informal means, then the individual 

will be informed of his or her right to appeal further to the Department of 
Justice. This notice will be provided in the primary language of the 
individual with Limited English Proficiency and the complaint will be 
forwarded to DOJ, HUD Field Office, or other appropriate DOJ contact.  

 
 

SUBMITTED AND APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 

  
S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
Currituck County, Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
  
Date 

Currituck County, NC 
Language Access Plan 

10 

222



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Surplus Resolution 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Surplus declaration to use a 2003 Ford Ambulance, Vin # 1FDXE45F63HB49020, Asset number 5828, as a trade in 
for a 2015 Chevy remount. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

EMS 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Consent Agenda 

223



R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on November 17, 2014 authorized the following, pursuant to 
GS 160A and 270(b),the property listed below be declared 
surplus because it will be used as a trade in for a 2015 
Chevrolet remount 

Asset 5828 2003 Ford Ambulance Vin 1FDXE45F63HB49020 

ADOPTED, this    day of , 2014. 

S. Paul O’Neal 
Currituck County Board of  
Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
LeeAnn Walton 
Clerk to the Board 

224



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

2014 Order of Collections 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

2014 Order of Collections  : NCGS 105-321 requires that the Board of Commissioners issue an Order of Collections 
to the Tax Collector when the tax receipts have been delivered to him. The Order shall be recorded in the minutes 
and a copy delivered to the Tax Collector. The Order constitutes the collector’s authority collect taxes and to 
exercise the various powers incident to the collection process.   

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Tracy Sample, Tax Administrator 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Consent Agenda  

225



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 

ORDER OF COLLECTIONS 

TO THE TAX COLLECTOR OF THE COUNTY OF CURRITUCK: 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the 

taxes, current and past due, set forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax 

Collector and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from 

the taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first 

lien upon all real property of the respective taxpayers in the County of Currituck, 

and this order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable 

you to levy on and sell any real or personal property of such taxpayers, for and on 

account thereof, in accordance with law. 

Witness my hand and official seal, this ______ day of 

__________________, 20_____. 

_________________________(SEAL) 
Chairman, Board of Commissioners of  

      Currituck County    
ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Clerk of Board of Commissioners of 
Currituck County  (G.S. 105-321) 

226



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Fireman’s Relief Fund Officers 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

Report of Fire Conditions and Relief Fund Board members for Fruitville/Carova Beach, Knotts Island, Moyock, 
Crawford, Corolla, and Lower Currituck VFD’s. 

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Sandra Hill 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Consent Agenda 

227



Name of Fire District:
Carova Beach Volunteer Fire and Rescue, Inc.
Fruitville Outer Banks CurrituckCounty:

District is Served By:

NOTE: This report must be filled out completely before October 31st or no later than January 31.  Reports
filed after this date are in non-compliance and the fire department will not be eligible to receive their
Firefighter's Relief Fund monies.

NORTH CAROLINA

RURAL FIRE DISTRICT

REPORT OF FIRE CONDITIONS

Ms. Marlene Ann Slate
2369 Ocean Sands Rd
Corolla, NC 27927

(X)

As required by General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina, I clerk do hereby make the following report on
the Rural Fire District Fruitville Outer Banks.  County of Currituck.

LOCAL FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF FUND BOARD

N.C. General Statutes: 58-84-30
(This information must be provided each year)

IF DEPARTMENT DOES NOT WISH TO PARTICIPATE, PLEASE INDICATE IN THIS SECTION

Mr. Daniel Myers
2260 Sturgeon Lane
Corolla, NC 27927

2.1.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by Fire Department (2)

Mr. Mark Stevens

1837 Summerhedge Close

Virginia Beach, VA 23456

Mr. Donnie Tadlock

2006 Ocean Pearl Rd

Corolla, NC 27927

3. 4.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by the Insurance Commissioner (1)

Mr. Randall Spencer

2302 Sand Fiddlet Rd

Corolla, NC 27927

5. Same as last Year? Yes No(X) ( )

If no, attach a copy of former Insurance
Commissioner appointee's letter of resignation AND
a copy of Fire Chief's letter of recommendation.

Select position of Firefighter's Relief Fund Treasurer: ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )1 2 3 4 5

I, Sandra Hill Clerk/Finance Officer of Currituck County,  NC do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,
full and correct report of the Fire Department and fire conditions in said county, made by me as required
under General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina.

_________________
Date

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by County Commissioners (2)

11/09/2014

11/09/2014 10:22:44
228



Name of Fire District:
Corolla Fire And Rescue Squad, Inc.
Poplar Branch Beach CurrituckCounty:

District is Served By:

NOTE: This report must be filled out completely before October 31st or no later than January 31.  Reports
filed after this date are in non-compliance and the fire department will not be eligible to receive their
Firefighter's Relief Fund monies.

NORTH CAROLINA
RURAL FIRE DISTRICT

REPORT OF FIRE CONDITIONS

Mr. Robert Wemyss
853 Sawgrass Ct
Corolla, NC 27927

( )

As required by General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina, I clerk do hereby make the following report on
the Rural Fire District Poplar Branch Beach.  County of Currituck.

LOCAL FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF FUND BOARD

N.C. General Statutes: 58-84-30
(This information must be provided each year)

IF DEPARTMENT DOES NOT WISH TO PARTICIPATE, PLEASE INDICATE IN THIS SECTION

Mrs. Eleanor Collins
1024 Lighthouse Dr
Corolla, NC 27927

2.1.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by Fire Department (2)

Mr. Barry Richman
869 Welk Ct
Corolla, NC 27927

Mr. Al Marzetti
609 Sea Oats Ct
Corolla, NC 27927

3. 4.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by the Insurance Commissioner (1)

Mr. Charles W Taylor
PO Box 205
Corolla, NC 27929

5. Same as last Year? Yes No(X) ( )

If no, attach a copy of former Insurance
Commissioner appointee's letter of resignation AND
a copy of Fire Chief's letter of recommendation.

Select position of Firefighter's Relief Fund Treasurer: ( ) ( ) ( ) (X)1 2 3 4 5

I, Sandra Hill Clerk/Finance Officer of Currituck County,  NC do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,
full and correct report of the Fire Department and fire conditions in said county, made by me as required
under General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina.

_________________
Date

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by County Commissioners (2)

10/14/2014

10/14/2014 02:10:15
229



Name of Fire District:
Crawford Township V.F.D., Inc.
Crawford Township CurrituckCounty:

District is Served By:

NOTE: This report must be filled out completely before October 31st or no later than January 31.  Reports
filed after this date are in non-compliance and the fire department will not be eligible to receive their
Firefighter's Relief Fund monies.

NORTH CAROLINA
RURAL FIRE DISTRICT

REPORT OF FIRE CONDITIONS

Mr. Stve Van Hise
103 Caratoke Hwy
Currituck, NC 27929

( )

As required by General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina, I clerk do hereby make the following report on
the Rural Fire District Crawford Township.  County of Currituck.

LOCAL FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF FUND BOARD

N.C. General Statutes: 58-84-30
(This information must be provided each year)

IF DEPARTMENT DOES NOT WISH TO PARTICIPATE, PLEASE INDICATE IN THIS SECTION

Mrs. Rebecca F Mims
164 Speckle Perch Lane
Moyock, NC 27958

2.1.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by Fire Department (2)

Mr. Chris Daly
224 Dozier Rd
Moyock, NC 27958

Mr. Larry Mangold
136 Rowland Creek Rd
Moyock, NC 27958

3. 4.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by the Insurance Commissioner (1)

Mrs. Joann Van Hise
103 Caratoke Hwy
Currituck, NC 27929

5. Same as last Year? Yes No(X) ( )

If no, attach a copy of former Insurance
Commissioner appointee's letter of resignation AND
a copy of Fire Chief's letter of recommendation.

Select position of Firefighter's Relief Fund Treasurer: ( ) ( ) ( ) (X)1 2 3 4 5

I, Sandra Hill Clerk/Finance Officer of Currituck County,  NC do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,
full and correct report of the Fire Department and fire conditions in said county, made by me as required
under General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina.

_________________
Date

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by County Commissioners (2)

10/04/2014

10/04/2014 04:25:10
230



Name of Fire District:
Knotts Island Fire Dept., Inc.
Knotts Island CurrituckCounty:

District is Served By:

NOTE: This report must be filled out completely before October 31st or no later than January 31.  Reports
filed after this date are in non-compliance and the fire department will not be eligible to receive their
Firefighter's Relief Fund monies.

NORTH CAROLINA

RURAL FIRE DISTRICT

REPORT OF FIRE CONDITIONS

Mr. Kevin Morgan
180 South End Road
Knotts Island, NC 27950

( )

As required by General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina, I clerk do hereby make the following report on
the Rural Fire District Knotts Island.  County of Currituck.

LOCAL FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF FUND BOARD

N.C. General Statutes: 58-84-30
(This information must be provided each year)

IF DEPARTMENT DOES NOT WISH TO PARTICIPATE, PLEASE INDICATE IN THIS SECTION

Mr. Frank Switzer
260 Marsh Casueway
Knotts Island, NC 27950

2.1.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by Fire Department (2)

Mr. Michael Childress

348 Woodleigh Road

Knotts Island, NC 27950

Mrs. Marion VanNostrand

365 South End Road

Knotts Island, NC 27950

3. 4.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by the Insurance Commissioner (1)

Mr. William Thorn

332 Knotts Island Rd

Knotts Island, NC 27950

5. Same as last Year? Yes No(X) ( )

If no, attach a copy of former Insurance
Commissioner appointee's letter of resignation AND
a copy of Fire Chief's letter of recommendation.

Select position of Firefighter's Relief Fund Treasurer: ( ) ( ) (X) ( )1 2 3 4 5

I, Sandra Hill Clerk/Finance Officer of Currituck County,  NC do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,
full and correct report of the Fire Department and fire conditions in said county, made by me as required
under General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina.

_________________
Date

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by County Commissioners (2)

10/14/2014

10/14/2014 02:19:43
231



Name of Fire District:
Moyock V.F.D. & Rescue Squad, Inc.
Moyock CurrituckCounty:

District is Served By:

NOTE: This report must be filled out completely before October 31st or no later than January 31.  Reports
filed after this date are in non-compliance and the fire department will not be eligible to receive their
Firefighter's Relief Fund monies.

NORTH CAROLINA

RURAL FIRE DISTRICT

REPORT OF FIRE CONDITIONS

Mr Ralph Melton
306 Greenview Rd
Moyock, NC 27958

( )

As required by General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina, I clerk do hereby make the following report on
the Rural Fire District Moyock.  County of Currituck.

LOCAL FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF FUND BOARD

N.C. General Statutes: 58-84-30
(This information must be provided each year)

IF DEPARTMENT DOES NOT WISH TO PARTICIPATE, PLEASE INDICATE IN THIS SECTION

Mrs. Denise Mayne
260 Maple Rd
Maple, NC 27956

2.1.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by Fire Department (2)

Ms. Lisa Gadkowski

100 Lanhorn Dr

Moyock, NC 27958

Mrs. Alicia Lane

110 Oakdale Dr

Moyock, NC 27958

3. 4.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by the Insurance Commissioner (1)

Mr. Richard Labounty

214 Beechwood Shores Dr.

Moyock, NC 27958

5. Same as last Year? Yes No(X) ( )

If no, attach a copy of former Insurance
Commissioner appointee's letter of resignation AND
a copy of Fire Chief's letter of recommendation.

Select position of Firefighter's Relief Fund Treasurer: ( ) ( ) ( ) (X)1 2 3 4 5

I, Sandra Hill Clerk/Finance Officer of Currituck County,  NC do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,
full and correct report of the Fire Department and fire conditions in said county, made by me as required
under General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina.

_________________
Date

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by County Commissioners (2)

11/09/2014

11/09/2014 10:26:54
232



Name of Fire District:
Lower Currituck V.F.D., Inc.
Lower Currituck CurrituckCounty:

District is Served By:

NOTE: This report must be filled out completely before October 31st or no later than January 31.  Reports
filed after this date are in non-compliance and the fire department will not be eligible to receive their
Firefighter's Relief Fund monies.

NORTH CAROLINA

RURAL FIRE DISTRICT

REPORT OF FIRE CONDITIONS

Mr. James Wesley Liverman Jr
103 Saddle Way
Grandy, NC 27939

( )

As required by General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina, I clerk do hereby make the following report on
the Rural Fire District Lower Currituck.  County of Currituck.

LOCAL FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF FUND BOARD

N.C. General Statutes: 58-84-30
(This information must be provided each year)

IF DEPARTMENT DOES NOT WISH TO PARTICIPATE, PLEASE INDICATE IN THIS SECTION

Mr. Charles R McNaughton
100 D Mercedes Ct
Grandy, NC 27939

2.1.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by Fire Department (2)

Mr. Todd C Hanke

124 Annas Way

Grandy, NC 27939

Mr. Mills Riddick

109 Deerfield Lane

Aydlett, NC 27916

3. 4.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by the Insurance Commissioner (1)

Mr. William Jones

2032 Creek Rd

Kitty Hawk, NC 27949

5. Same as last Year? Yes No(X) ( )

If no, attach a copy of former Insurance
Commissioner appointee's letter of resignation AND
a copy of Fire Chief's letter of recommendation.

Select position of Firefighter's Relief Fund Treasurer: ( ) (X) ( ) ( )1 2 3 4 5

I, Sandra Hill Clerk/Finance Officer of Currituck County,  NC do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,
full and correct report of the Fire Department and fire conditions in said county, made by me as required
under General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina.

_________________
Date

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by County Commissioners (2)

11/10/2014

11/10/2014 04:51:30
233


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Closure of Coral Lane, Walnut Island, Grandy
	Resolution
	Coral Lane Plat
	Walnut Island Coral Lane Closure

	Public Hearing and Action: PB 14-25 Wilbur Griggs Sand Mine:
	Case Analysis
	Plan
	Application
	Community Meeting Summary
	Monitoring Wells
	Enhanced Ditch
	NCDENR Permits

	Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-27 Bissell Professional Group:
	Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-26 Old Bay Ridge:
	Case Analysis
	Preliminary Plat

	Public Hearing and Action:  PB 14-16 Lake View at Currituck
	Case Analysis
	Development Agreement
	PUD Variance
	Stormwater

	Approval of Minutes for November 3, 2014
	Minutes

	Budget Amendments
	2012 Community Development Block Grant Language Access Plan
	CDBG Language Access Plan

	Surplus Resolution-EMS
	Resolution

	Tax Department-2014 Order of Collections
	Order of Collections-2014

	Firemen's Relief Fund Officers; Carova Beach VFD, Corolla VFD, Crawford VFD, Knotts Island VFD, Moyock VFD, Lower Currituck VFD
	Carova Beach
	Corolla
	Crawford
	Knotts Island
	Moyock
	Lower Currituck


